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McGregor W. Scott

United States Attorney
Kristin 8. Door (SBN 84307)
Assistant U.S. Attorney

501 I Street, Suite 10-100
Sacramento, California 95814
Telephone: (916) 554-2700

Jonathan F. Bank (SBN 43210)
Joshua D, Wayser (SBN 152711)
LORD BISSELL & BROOK LLP
300 S. Grand Avenue, Suite 800
Los Angeles CA 90071

Phone: (213) 485-1500

Fax: (213) 485-1200

Counsel to Malcolm Butterfield, Brian Glasgow,

and Simon Whicker, in their capacity as Foreign
Representatives of the St. Vincent and the Grenadines
Foreign Proceeding Respecting Tri-Continental
Exchange Ltd., Alternative Market Exchange, Ltd.
and Combined Services, Ltd.

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SACRAMENTO DIVISION
Inre _ g
Petition of Malcolm Butterfield, Brien Glasgow )
and Simon Whicker as Foreign Representatives ) Chapter 15
of the St. Vincent and the Grenadines Foreign ) .
Proceeding Respecting the St. Vincent and the ) Case No. 2006-22652-c-15
Grenadines International Business Cox:g:any ) '
known as Tri-Continental Exchange Ltd., ) STIPULATION BETWEEN
) THE UNITED STATES OF
- ) AMERICA AND THE
Debtor in a Foreign Proceeding ) - DEBTORS
)
)
)
)
)
)
Inre g
Petition of Malcolm Butterfield, Brian Glasgow )
and Simon Whicker as Foreign Representatives 3 Chapter 15
of the St. Vincent and the Grenadines Foreign
Proceeding Respecting the St. Vincent and the ) Case No, 2006-22655-b-15
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Grenadines International Business Company ) ‘
known as Combined Services Ltd., ) STIPULATION BETWEEN
) THE UNITED STATES OF
; AMERICA AND THE
Debtor in a Foreign Proceeding ) - DEBTORS
)
)
)
)
Inre ) )
Petition of Malcolm Butterfield, Brian Glasgow 3
and Simon Whicker as Foreign Representatives ) Chapter 15
of the St Vincent and the Grenadines Foreign )
Proceeding Respecting the St. Vincent and the ) Case No. 2006-22657-a-15
Grenadines International Business Company ) .
known as Alternative Marketing Exchange Ltd,, ) STIPULATION BETWEEN
) THE UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA AND THE
Debtor in a Foreign Proceeding ; DEBTORS
)
)
)
)
_J)

Plaintiff, United States of America (the “Government”), and Malcolm Butterfield, Briaﬁ
Glasgow and Simon Whicker, in their capacity s the duly suthorized foreign representative (the
“Foreign Representative” or the “Joint quui&ators”) of Tri-Continental Exchange Ltd. (TCE"),
Combined Services Lid. (“CSL”) and Alternative Market Exchange Ltd. (“AME,” and together with
TCE and CSL, the “Debtors”) hereby agree and stipulate as follows;

1. Foreign insolvency proceedings for each of the Debtors were commenced and are pending
in St. Vincent and the Grenadines before the Eastern Caribbean Supreme Court (collectively, the
“SVG Proceeding”). The three-person Foreign Representative is duly appointed in the SVG |
Proceeding to serve as the Joint Liquidators of thé Debtors. Copies of each of the orders of the
Eastem.Caribbean Supreme Court appointing the Foreign Representative as the Joint Liquidators of

the Debtors are atiached as Exhibits A, B and C hereto, respectively.
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2, Pursuant to Chapter 15 of the United States Bankrutpcy Code, 11 U.S.C. 1501 ef seq.
(“Chapter 15"), contemporaneously herewith the Joint Liquidators have filed petitions (hereafter
collectively, the “Petition™) to be recognized by this Court as the Foreign Representative of ﬁe

Debtors.
3. Section 1501 of Title 11 provides in pertinent part as follows:

(2). The purpose of this chapter is to incorporate the Model Law on Cross-
Border Insolvency so as to provide effective mechanisms for dealing
with cases of cross-border insolvency with the objectives of -

(1)  cooperation between -
(A)  courts of the United States, United States trustees,
trustees, examiners, debtors and debtors in possession;
and

(B) the courts and other competent authorities of foreign
countries involved in cross-border insolvency cases;

Rl 1L

| (3) fair and efficient administration of cross-border insolvencies
that protects the interests of all creditors, and other entities,
including the debtors;

(4)  protection and maximization of the value of the debtor’s
assets....

11 US.C. §1501(a). The foregoing objectives of Chapter 15 proceedings will be well-served by the
transfer of certain funds in the approximate amount of $1.6 million from an in rem civil forfeiture
proceeding pending before the United States District Court for the Eastern District Court of
California, Civ. S-05-0149, United States of America v. $v 1,200,000 in U.S. Currency Seized from
First California Bank Acct. No: 2005638, et al., commenced oﬁ or about January 24, 2005 (the
“Forfeiture Action™). A copy of the Verified Complaint for Forfeiture In Rem is attached as Exhibit
D to each of the Debtors® Verified Petitions filed in the above-captioned cases. As set forth more
fully in the Petition, the approximately $1.6 million in funds (the “Funds”) subject to the Forfeiture

Action are finds of the Debtors obtained through the sham insurance scheme, and then transferred
-3~
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from the Debtors in @ money laundering operation by Robert L. Brown a/k/a Matthew Schacter
through various accounts, In addition, attached as Exhibit D hereto is a copy of the Criminal
Complaint against Mr. Brown, together with the Affidavit of John Sommercamp, Jr., Special Agent
of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, United States Department of Justice, dated August 10, 2004,
outlining in considerable detail the money laundering of the Funds. The Government and the
Foreign Representative submit that this evidence compels the conclusion that all of the Funds named
as the defendants in the Forfeiture Action belong to the Debtors and therefore may be appropriately
administered in the Debtors’ Chapter 15 cases under the supervision of the Bankruptcy Couut,
provided that the Distriot cour rlinguishes ts jurisdiction over the Funds and dismisses the peading |

Forfeiture Action.

4, The Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit has recently held that, where there are
competing claims (including constructive trust claims) to funds held in a federal forfeiture
proceeding, any genuine equitable rights of ownership may be impressed upon the foffeited funds
and the Court administering the funds should take “steps to assure that no claimant obtains more
than his or her fair share.” United States v..$4.224.958.57, 392 F.3d 1002, 1005 (Sth Cir. 2004)
(“Boylan™).! This Court, as the tribunal presiding over the Debtors’ Chapter 15 cases is, under the
particular circumstances of this case, particularly well-positioned to apply the bankruptcy laws of the
United States and of SVG, as appropriate, to determine any disputes regarding ownership of and
interests in the Finds, As set forth in the Verified Cdmplaint (Exh., D) (verified by Jason Lamb,
Special Agent, Internal Revenue Service, Criminal Investigation Division) all of the Funds belong to

TCE or the other Debtors. Accordingly, to achieve the objectives of this Stipulation, and in

! The Government does not concede that Boylen applies. In another case involving a large number of victims this Court
(Garcia, J.) distinguished Boylan on prudential standing grounds. See United States v. Alyn Richard Waage, 2:03-CR-
005 EJG (Final Order of Porfeiture - Latvian Assets failed August 12, 2005). Whether Boylan applies, and who qualifies
as a Boylan victim, are matters that the parties need not address if the Court approves this Stipulation. )

The Government submits that the Debtors® Chapter 15 cases provide the appropriate alternative to a Boylan-
type proceeding. CE, United States v. Frykholm, 362 F.3d 413, 417 (7th Cir. 2004) (Basterbrook, J.) (suggesting that an
involuntary bankruptcy proceeding may provide a superior way to marshal forfeitable assets in a case involving
mimerous creditors).

-4-
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accordance with Boylan and Frykholm, the Government will ask the District Court o relinguish its
in rem jurisdiction over the Funds and to dismiss the Forfeiture Action.

5. The Government and the Foreign Representative submit that the Funds aro property that
the Foreign Representative “may use, sell, or lease under Section 363 lof [the Bankruptcy Code...]”
and that the Government therefore “shall deliver” the Funds fo thg. Foreign Representative pursuant
to §542(a) of the Bankruptcy Code upon the District Court’s entry of an order relinquishing its in
rem jurisdiction over the Funds and dismissing the Forfeiture Action. Moreover, the Government
and the Foreign Representative hereby agree that, upon this Court’s approval of the Stipulation, and
the District Court’s entry of the order described above, the Government shall, pursuant to §542(a) of
the Bankruptcy Code, deliver to the Foreign Represeatative each of the three sets of Funds that are
subject to the Forfeiture Action. The Funds shall be transmitted to an account established by the
Foreign Representative at a national banking association at its offices within the State of California,
Upon this Court's entry of an Order approving this Stipulation, the Foreign Representative shall
have Jegal title to and take custody of the Funds, and shall hold and invest the Funds as provided in
§345 of the Bankruptcy Court and administer them in a manner consistent with the orders of the
Bankruptcy Court and with the Foreign Representative’s duties and powers as the Joint Liquidators
in the SVG Proceeding,

6. This Stipulation and the Order approving it are not intended to adjudicate or decide the
claims of any person asserting an ownership interest, a constructive trust or any other interest in any
of the Funds. The Government and the Foreign Representative request thnt this Court direct that
nothing in this Stipulation shall be construed to prevent any person or legal entity from asserting
such claims to the Funds, and that any such claims to the funds if not adjudicated by the District
Court in the Forfeiture Action prior to its anticipated dismissal, will be determined in the Chapter 15

cases or, if appropriate, in related cases (if any) or other proceedings before this Court,

-5




PR

Loxd, Bilsgell & Brook LLP

111 South Wacker Drive

Chicago, IL 60606-4410

Sy

3
4
Dated: July 20, 206 Respectfully submitted,
"5
6 .
. fs/ __Kristin 8. Door
8 || Attorneys for the Government: McGregor W. Scott
United States Attorney
9|l Kristin S. Door (SBN 84307) |
' Assistant U.S. Attorney i l
10 501 I Street, Suite 10-100
Sacramento, California 95814
11 Tel: (916) 554-2700 ‘
. Fax: (916) 554-2900 . !
12
13 !
14
/s Porrest B, Lammiman
15 .
16 || Attomeys for the Foreign.
Representative: Jonathan F, Bank (SBN 43210
17 Joshua D, Wayser (SBN 152711)
LORD BISSELL & BROOK LLP
18 300 S. Grand Avenue, Suite 800
Los Angeles CA 90071
- 18 Phone: (213) 485-1500
20 Fax: (213) 485-1200
‘and
21
i ‘ Forrest B. Lammiman
22 Aaron C, Smith .
, LORD, BISSELL & BROOK LLP
23 111 South Wacker Drive
: Chicago, lllinois 60606
24 Phone: 312.443-0700
Fax: 312.443.0336
25
26
27
28

Case 2:05-cv-00149-JAM-DAD Document 79-1 Filed 12/07/06 Page 7 of 65

1 7. The Government and the Foreign Representative request that the Court approve this
2 |\ stipulation and direct the parties to act in accordance herewith.
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SO ORDERED:

United States Bankruptcy Judge
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EXHIBIT A
TRI-CONTINENTAL EXCHANGE LTD. WINDING UP ORDER
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The Hastern Caribbean Supreme Court

In the High Coust of Justice
Saint Vincent md the Grenadines
Claim No. 543 of 2004

=¥

IN THE MATTER OF TRI-CONTINENTAL EXCHANGE LTD,
AND _ ‘
IN THE MATTER OF THE, COMPANIES ACT, No. 8 of 1994
AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS COMPANIES ACT, No. 18
of 1996

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE ACT, No, 13 of 1998

ORDER
" DATED THE lq‘h’ DAY OF “Jout 2005
KNTERED THE 3[“( pavor T, 2005

M. J, Martin for tho Petitioner
The Compuny Tri-Continental Exchange Ltd., Unrcpreseated.

Before the Honourable Madam Justice Gertel Thom in opet court onthe 14*  day of
June, 2005,

UPON HEARING Counsed for the Petitioner
AND UPON READING the Petition and Aﬂidgviu filed herein

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

I,  That Te-Continental Exchange Ltd. (“the Company™) be wound up and that Malcolm
Buttorfield, Simon Whicker uod Brlan Glasgow be and Is hereby appointed joined
fiquidstors ("the Liquidators”) of the vompany with all the powers and duties of &
Liguidator as coniaimed in tho Companics Act of 1994, No, 8 ("the Act™) of the Laws of

DOD0O00000000 00000000000000 doysen so er unr
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Saint Vincent and the Grenadines or any other legialation related thereto and with further
dutios and rosponsibilitios as confersed by this Order.

2. The Liquidators shall take possession of, gather in and realiso alf the prosent and future
asscts and property of thc Company, including without fimitation, any real and personal
property, cash, choses in action, nogotiable instruments, soourity granted or assigned to
the Company by third parfies including property held in trust or for the benofit of the
Cormpany, and rights, tangible or intangible, wheresoever situate and to tako such steps as

| WG noccssary or appropriate (o verify the existence and location of all the assets of the
Company, or any assets formarly held whether directly or inditectly or to the order of or
for the benefit of the Company or any prosent or former subsidiary or company
associated with the Company, including the terms of all agreements or other’
arrangoments rolating thereto, whether written or oral, the existence or assertion of any
lien, chargo, cncumbranco of soeurity interest thereon, and any other matters which in the
opinion of the Liquidators may affect tho éxten, value, existence, preservation, snd
liquidation of the asscts and property of the Company.

3. The Liquidators shall cpen and maintain in its name a bank accouot (“the Account"), a1
the Netional Commercial Bank, SVG, 8 bank operating within the jurisdiction of this
lonoursblo Court and deposit thercin the fimds %o gathered and realised.
Notwithstanding the forsgolng the Liquidators may open temporary bank accoumls in .
foreign jurisdictions and receive the prococds from the sale or realisation of the
Company's assets and property in those jurisdietions, into those accounts provided such
fimds shall be returned to the jurisdiction of this Coust and placed in the Account.

4,  The funds in the Account and any other of the Company's assets and property are to bo
held for the benefit of the Claimants, croditors and investors of the Company a5 their

Interests appear in accordance with the laws of Suint Vincent and the Grenadines, subject
to the payment of the fecs, expenscs and costs of the liquidation which shall be paid in
iho following order in priority to ¢laims of g‘lm::iants. croditors and iavestors:

[
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(a) The foes and cxpenscs of the Liquidators, including fecs and expenscs of legal
counsel, and agents, accountants, investigutors or other experts engaged by the
Liquidutors to assist it in the coduct of'its dutics and responsibilitics;

&) The cosis of the liquidation, ncluding but not Emited to the costs of retainiug
staff and officers to assist in the liquidation inchuding without limitation benefits and
expenses, vent, power, telephone, charges associated with computer systems, bank
chiarges and interest and any other costs 1hat in tho opinion of the Liquidators arc required

to facilitate the liquidation process;
() Bocrowings, if any, of the Liquidators;
{d) Tho balanco to be paid on account of the claims of creditors and claimanty of the

Company #s at the dats of this Order and in accordance with their priority under the laws
of Saint Vincent and the Grenadines, or us may be ordered by this Honourable Court with
the remaining balance, if sny, to be distributed as the court deems it to order,

5, ‘The Liquidators shall have a first priority sccurity interest in the assets and propenty of
the company in priority to all persons as security for their fcs, expenses and costs,

6. The Liquidators shall be at liberty and without finther order to examine undor oath any
person reasonably thought to have knowledge of the affirs of the Company o any
person who is or has been a director, officer, employes, agent, shareholder or atcountant
of the Company, or such other person they belisve 10 ba knowledgeable of the affuirs of
the Company and to ordet such person fisblo to bo exemined to produce any books,
documents, correspondence or papers in his posscssion or power relating to all or in part
o the Company, its dealings, property and assets andl the Liquidators ere mthorised 10
issue Writs of Subpocnas ad tostificandum and duces tecum for the compulsory

" attendance of any such person required for such examtination.

7. The Company and any person holding or veasovably balicved to have in their possession
of powec any assets or property of the Company including without Jimitation, computer

grd 000000000000 000D00000DD00D dotteo sp gy une
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records, programs, disks, documents, books of account, wm regords, minutes,
opinions rendered to tho Company, documents of title, electronic or otherwise
{collectively called "Papers') rclating in whole or in part to the Company or such
persons, dealings, or property showing that he is indebted io:heCw-parnymwbc
required by the Licuidators to produce or deliver over such property forthwith to the
Liguidators notwithstanding any claim or fen that such person may have ot claim on
such assets and propesty and the 1iquidators shall have full and complete possession and
control of such assets and property of 1he Company including its premises, In the ovent
of 3 bona fide disputo a8 to ownership and legal cnxiilement to such property and Papers,
the Liquidators shall take away facsimile copics of such Papers, '

The Liguidasors are authorised in their own namcs or on beholf of the Company as
Biquidators to join in and execute, assign, issue and endorse such transfers conveyances,
contracts, lezses, deeds, bills of sale, choques, bills of lading or exchange or other
documents of whatevor nature in respect of any assets and properly of the Company as
may be requix;ed to carry out its Juties inchuding the realisation and quidation of the
assets of the Company or for any purpose pursuant to this Order,

Tho Liquidators are cmpowered and horcby suthorised 1o borrow such raoney from time
to timo as it mey consider necessary or desirable including any monies borrowed or to be
borvowed for expenses incurred by the Liquidators whils operating by virtue of its

appointment hereunder, save that such borrowings shall not to exceed RCS1 million at

any time, and, subject to paragraph S bereof pledge by way of a first charge in priority to
all other claims or charges, the assets of the Company as security for such borcowiags.

The remuneration of the Liquidstors and its cxpenses at cost, mey bo drswn on acoount of
the total onamo:ﬂﬂybasisfromihemel&%mthc&mpwhﬁhdingcashmd
deposits on hand, on the basis of the time expended by the Liquidators and its staff at
their usual rates for such work subject tn suok amounts being taxed from time to timo as

the Court may direct and in any event the account of the Liquidators shall bo taxed prior
to fts discharge.

990000000000 00C00000000000 dD"I 10 90 EY ung
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14,

15,

.8

The Liquidators may engage sgents, appiraisors, auctioneers, brokers, or any othor exports
a8 may be required to assist it with the lquidation proccss and in determnining claims in
the Hquidation.

The Liquidetors may retain independent legal advico and engage legal Counsef both
inside and outside St. Vincent and Uwe Grenadines and elsewhere to assist them as

Liquidators for the purpose of their dutics hereunder.

The Liquidators shall bave the authority as an officers off this Honourable Court to act in
St. Vincent and the Grenadines or any foreign jurisdiction where it believes assets and
proparty of the Company may be situatc and shall have the right to bring any proceeding
or action in Saint Vincent aod the Grenadines or in sny forvign jurisdiction for the
purpose of fulfilling their duties and obligations vnder this Order and the Act and to seek
the assistance of any court of'a forelgn jurisdiction in the camying out of the provislons of
this Order of any subsequent order in this proceeding, including without liroitation, an
order of examination of persons believod to be knowledgeable of the affairs, asscts and
property of the Company and to assist the Liquidators in the recovery of the assets and
proparty of the Company.

Tho Liquidators shall provide a report to thip Honourable Court within 3 calendar months
of their appointment with vespect to tho liquidation and its prefiminary dotcrmination of
the assity to be realised, the fikely recoveries anid tho extent to which the claims of
creditors, claimants, and investors in the Company may be mel. The Liquidators shall
further report to the Court as it or the Court determines is appropriate, but shall in any
ovent repont no less frequently than six months from the date ofits last report,

The Liquidators, their officers, etaployeus, legal Counsel, agents, and such-other persons
relained by it in the parformance of Its duties hercunder shall be granted indemnity from
the assets of the Company for its foes, expenses and actions taken, including indemnity
for any litigation or other claims, actions or demands whatsoéver in respect of any debts,
costs, claims, liabilities, acts, matters, or things done or due to be done or omitted by the
Liquidators, #ts officers, cmployess, logal Counsel, sgoents and such other persoms

000000000000 00000000000000 doT:E0 9D €Y unp
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retzined by it exocpt where there is a finding by the Court of gross negfigence in the
performance of their respective dutios,

6. All actions, procoedings and any claims whatsoover and wheresoever nitiated against the
Company, its assets and property, arc horeby stayed and no person, which shall include a
body corporato, shall bring or continue with a claim or proceeding agninyt the Liquidators
or the Company without leave of this Honourable Court,.

17. Al persons, firms and corporations are hereby restralned from tm:inatiigorinterferins
with utilities or services, including without fimitation the furnishing of electricity, water,
telephone or any othor utilities of like kind furnished up to the date of this Order to the
Company and such parties are herby restrainod and enjoined from cutting off,
disconnecting or altering auy suoh wilities or services to the Liquidator except with the
leave off this Honourable Court with it Icss than [4 days clear notice to the Liquidator,
and then only on such terms as this Hovoursble Court may order,

18, The Liquidators In the camying out of their duties and responsibilivies may apply for
direction and guidance from this Honourable Court fiom time to time including any

applicaﬁqnasnuyborequﬁredfortiwmmdmunoﬂhis&du:

19, " The Liquidators, fn their names or in the name of the Company, shall be at iberty to
apply for any permits liceaces, approvals or permissions as may be required by or
doemed necessary’ pursuant to any laws, governmental or regulatory authority, in the
pursuit and performance of thelr duties hereunder.

20.  The Liquidators are not subject to posting security in respect of his appointment made
berein. _
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21. ﬂeUm:idmmactsolelyhﬂwiroapacityu Liquidators and without personal liability,

BY THE COURT
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The Hastern Caxibbean Supreme Court

’ In the High Court of Justice
Saint Vincent and the Gronadines
Claim No. 543 of 2004

IN THE MATTER OF TRI-CONTINENTAL EXCHANGE LD,

AND . '

IN TIIE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, No. 8 of 1994

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS COMPANIES ACT, No, 18
of 1996 '

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE ACT, No. 13 of 1998

ORDER

MARKS, MARTIN AND ASSOCIATES
Clambers
Melville Stroct

Kingstown
Sain Vincent and the Grenadines
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COMBINED SERVICES LTD. WINDING-UP ORDER

EXHIBIT B
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The Bastern t.anbbean Supremo Court

Inthe High Court of Justice
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines
Claim No. 542 of 2004

IN THE MATTER OF COMBINED SERVICES LTD

AND ,

IN THE MATTER OF TII¥, COMPANIES AC'T, No, 8 of 1994
AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS COMPANIES ACT, No. 18
of 1996

AND

IN THE MA'TTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE ACT, No. 13 of 1998

ORDER

DATEDTHE |4 4 oavor Mo 2008

" ENTEREDTHE &.( ¥ DAYOF "3, 2005
Mr. J. Martin for the Peitioner ‘
WGMWMMLM, Unrepresented,

Bofore the Honourable Madam Justioc Gertel Thum in open court on the 14 day of
June, 2005,

UPON HEARING Counael for the Petitioner
AND UPON READING the Petition and Affidavits filed hercln
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

I, That Combived Services L4d. (“tho Company™) be wound up and thet Malcolm
Butterficld, Simon Whicker and Brian Glasgow be and is hereby appointed joined
Tiquidators ("tho Liquidators”) of the company with all the powors gnd duties of 2
Liquidater s contained in the Companies Aer of 1994, No. 8 (*the Act") of the Laws of
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Saint Vincent and the Grenadings or any other legistation rolated thereto and with further
dutics and responsibilitics as conforred by this Order, ’

2, ‘The Liquidators shall take possession of, gather in and realise all the present and future
assets and property of the Company, including without limitation, any veal and personal’
property, oash, choscs in action, negotisblo instrumcots, security grated or assigned to
the Company by third parties including property beld in trust or for tho benefit of the
Cowmpany, and rights, tangible or intangible, wheresoover situatc and to take such wteps as
are neccssary OF appropriato to verify tho existence and location of all th assets of the
Company, or any assets formerly held whether directly or indivectly or to the ordor of or
for the benefit of the Company or any prosent or lormer subsidiary or compeny
associated with the Compuny, includimgy the terms of all agreements or ciher
arrangoments velating thereto, whether writtco or orsl, the existence or assertion of any
Hon, charge, encumbrance or sesurity interest thercon, and any other matiers which in the
opinion of the Liquidators may affoct the extent, value, cxistence, proservation, and
liquitiation of the assets and property of the Company,

3. The Liquidators shall open and maintain in its name a bank account (*the Account™), at
the National Cormercia) Bank, SVG, a bank operating within the jurisdiction of this
Honoursble Court and deposit thowsin the funds so gathered and realised.
Notwithstanding the forcgoing the Liguidators may open tomporary bank accounts in

forelgn Jurisdicdons and veotve the mrocceds from the sale or realisation of the
Company's asscis and property i those furisdictions, into thosc accounts provided such
funds shall be teturned to tho jurisdiction of this Coust and placed in the Account.

4. “The funds in the Account and any other of tho Company’s assetx and proporty ara 1o be
" held for the benefit of the'élnimmus, creditors and invostors of the Company as their
interests appear itt accordance with the laws of Saint Vincent and the Grenadines, subject
to the payment of the fees, cxpenses and costs of the liquidation which shall be paid in

the following order in priority to claims of Claimants, creditors and nvestors:

,;w*’"ﬁf:;%)\
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The Liquidators may cnguge agents, appraisors, auctionecrs, brokers, or any other experts
as may be required to assist it with the liquidation process and in determining claims in
the tiquidation,

The Liquidators may retzin indcpendent Jegal advice and cngage legal Counsel both
inside and outside St, Vincent and the Grepadines and clsewhere to assist them ag
Liquidators for the purposc of their dutics hercunder.

'The Liquidators shall have the authority a5 an officers off this Honourable Court to act in
St. Vincent and the Grenadines or any foreign jurisdiction where it believes assets and
property of tho Company may bo situate and shall have the right to bring any procecding
of action in Saint Vinosm and the Grumadinos or in any foreign jurisdiction for the
purpose of fulfilling their duties and obligations under this Order and the Act and to seek
the agsistance of any court of a fweign jurisdiction i the carrying out of tho provisions of
this Order or any subsequent ordor in this prococding, including without limitation, an
ordor of examination of persons believed to be koowledgeuble of the affairs, ussels and
property of the Company and to assist the Liquidators in the rccovery of the asscts and
property of the Company.

Tho Liquidators shall provide a roport to this Honourable Court within 3 calendar months
of their appointment with respect to the liquidation and its pecliminary determination of
the assets to be realised, tho likely vecoverics and the extent to which the claims of
creditors, claimaats, and fnvestors in the Company may be met. The Liquidators shal
furthor repost t0 the Court as it of the Court determines is appropriats, but shall in any
ovont report 1o Joss frequently than six months from the date of'its last report.

‘The Liquidators, their officers, employces, legal Counsel, agents, and such other persons
retained by it in the performance of its duties hereundor shall be grasted fndenmity from
the assets of the Company for its fecs, expenscs and actions taken, including indemnity
for any litigation or othor claims, actions or demands whatsoever in respect of any debts,
costa, claims, fiabilities, acts, mattors, or things dons or due to be done or omitted by the
Liquidators, its officors, employeos, legal Counsel, agemts and such other persons
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2l. T’hol.iquidaomactsolcl_yhuwlrcapucilyasI.iqzﬁdator:andwhhoutpmulliabiﬁty.
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The Enstern Caribbean Suprome Court

- Tnthe High Court of Justice
" Saint Vincent and the Grenadines
« Cliim No. 542 'of 2004

IN THE MATTER OF COMBINED SERVICKS LTD

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANTES ACT, No. 8 of 1994

AND :

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS COMPANIES ACT, No. 18
-~ of 1996 '

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE ACT, No. 13 of 1998

ORDER

W
%ARKS. MARTIN AND ASSOCIATES
Chambors

3

Mdlville Strect
Kingstown
Saint Vincont and the Grenadines




Lord, Bissell & Brook LLP

111 South Wacker Dxrive
Chicago, IL 60606-4410
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EXHIBIT C
ALTERNATIVE MARKET EXCHANGE LTD. WINDING-UP ORDER




Case 2:05-cv-00149-JAM-DAD Document 79-1 Filed 12/07/06 Page 25 of 65

Jun 13 06 03:08p = 0000000000000Q 00oogooonags p.9

ThoRastanCanbbeunSnmemm
In the High Court of Justice

Saint Vincent and the Grenadines
Claim No, 541 ol2004

IN THE MATTER OF ALTERNATIVE MARKKET EXCHANGE LTD,
AND

IN'THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, No. 8 of 1994

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNAYIONAL BUSINESS COMPANIES ACT, No, 18
of 1996

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE ACT, No. 13 of 1998

ORDER
DATEDTHE [ f pavor /J:,._ 2005
pxrerepTie Q07 DAY o T 208
Mr. J. Martin for the Petitioner
The Company Alternatve Market Excharige Ltd.. Unrepresented.

Before the Honourable Madam Justice Gestel Thom in open court on the 14* day of
June, 2005,

UPON HEARING Counsel for the Petitioncr
AND UPON READING the Petition and Affidavits filed hepcin

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

).  ‘That Alternative Market Bxchangs Ltd, {“the Company”) be wound up and that Malcolm
Butterfield, Simon Whicker and Brian Glasgow be and Is hereby appointed joined
liquidators ("the Liquidators™) of the compeny with all the powers and duties of &
Linuidator as contained in the Companivs Act of 1994, No. 8 (“the Act") of the Laws of
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Saint Vinoent and the Grenadins or any uther legislation rclated thereto and with furthor
dutics and responsibilities as conferred by this Order,

2. The Liquidators shall take possession of, gather in and realise all the present and future
. assets and property of the Company, inciuding without limitation, any real and personal
property, cash, choses In action, negotiable instruments, security granted or assigned to
the Company by third partis inchuding property held in trust or for the benefit of the
Compay, and tights, tangible or intangible, wheresoever situate and to take such steps as
are neccssay or appropriate to verify the existence and location of all the assets of the
Cowpany, or any assets formerly held whether directly or indirectly or to the order of or
for the benefit of the Company or auy present orfommwbﬁﬁaryérwmpmy
sssoviated with the Company, inclnding the torms of all agreements or other
amangements relating thereto, whether written or oral, the existencs or assertion of any .
fien, charge, encumbrance or security integest thereon, and any other matters which in the
opinion of the Liquidators may affect the extent, value, existence, prescrvation, and
Hiquidation of the asscts and property of the Company,

3. The Liquidators shall open and maintain in its name a bank account ("the Account"), at
the National Commercial Bank, $VG, a bapk operating within the jurisdiction of this
" Honoursble Cowrt and deposit thorcin the funds so gathersd and realised.
Notwithstanding the foregoing the Liquidators may open temporary bank accounts in
forcign jurisdictions and reccive the proveeds from the sale or realisation of the
Company’s assots and property In those jurisdictions, into those accounts provided such
funds shall be retumed to the jurisdiction of this Coust and placed in the Acsount. '

4, The funds in the Account and any other of the Company's assets and: property ase to be
held for the benefit of the Claimants, creditors and investors of the Company ag their
interests appear in accordance with the laws of Ssint Vincent and the Grenadines, subject
to the payment of the fecs, expenses and costs of the liquidation which shall be paid in
the following order ip priority 10 claims of Claimants, «edm‘n;imvemts: .

.
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@ The fees and expenses of the Liquidators, incloding fees and expenses of legal
counse!, and sgents, acoountants, inveslipators or other expers cngaged by the
Liquidators to assist it in the conduct of it= duties and responsibilitics;

®) The costs of the fiquidation, including but not Emited to the costs of retaining
staff’ and officery to assist in the liguidution inoluding without Fmitation benefits and
expenses, repl, power, telephone, charges associated with computer systems, bank
charges and interest and any other costs that in the opinfon of the Liquidators are required

to facilitate the Equidation process;
© Borrowings, if'any, afthe; Liquidators;
(d) The balance to be paid on acoount of the claims of creditors and claimants of the

Company as at the date of this Order and in accordence with thelr priority under the laws
of Ssint Vincent and the Grenadincs, or o5 may be ordered by this Honourable Court with
the remaining balance, if any, to bs distributed as the court desms it to onder,

5.  The Liquidators shall havo a first priority security intorest in the assets and property of
the company in priority to alf parsons a3 scourity for their fhes, expenses and costs.

6. The Liquidators shall be at liberty and without further order to examine under oath any
person reasonably thought to havo knowledge of the affairs of the Company or any
person who is or has been a direstor, officer, cmployes, agent, shareholder or acoountant
of the Company, or such other person they belicve to be knowledgeable of the affairs of
the Company and to order such person Dable to be exantined to produce any books,
documeats, cotrespondenoa of papers In hig possession or power relating to all or in part
to the Compuny, its dealings, property and assets and the Liquidators are authorised to
issuc Writs of Subpocnas ad testificandum and duces tecum for the compulsory
-attendance of any such person vequired for sich examination.

7. The Company and any pesson holding or reasonably befieved to have in theie possession
OF power auy assets or property of the Company including without limitation, computer
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records, programs, disks, documents, books of account, corporate records, minutes,
opinions rendered to the Company, documents of fitle, electronio or ofberwise
(collextively called "Papers”) welating in whole or in part to the Company or such
persons, dealings, or property showing that he is indebled to the Company may be
required by the Liquidators to produce or deliver over such propesty forthwith to the
Liquidators notwithstanding any claim or lien that such person may have or claim on
such assets and property and the Liquidators shall have foll and complete possession and
control of such asscts and preperty of the Company including its premises, In the event
of a bona fide dispute as to owncrship and legal entitiement to such property and Papers,
the Liquidators shall teke away facyimile copios of such Papers,

8.  The Liquidstors are authorised in thelr own names or on behalf of the Company as
fiquidators to join i and exscute, assign, istue and cadorse such transfers conveyances,
contracts, leases, deeds, bills of sale, choques, bills of lading or cxchange or other
docuroents of whatever nature in respect of any assets and property of the Company a4
may be required to camry out its dutics including the realisation and liquidation of the
assets of'the Company or for any purpose pursuant to this Order,

9,  The Liguidators are empowered and hervby authorised to borrow such money fiom time
10 tims as it may consider necessary of desirble including any monies borrowed or to be
bommowed for expenses incurred by the Liguidstors while operating by virtue of its
appointment horcunder, save that such horrowings shall not to exceed ECS1 milfion at
any lime, and, subject to paragraph 5 beseof pledge by way of a first charge in priority to
all other claims or charges, the assets of tls Company as security for such borrowings.

10.  The resuneration of the Liquidators and its expenses at cost, may b drawn on acoount of
thetotdmamonﬁ:lyﬁasisﬁmtheuulsﬁnmthe?mpmyinchﬂngwhmd
deposiss on hand, on the basis of the time expended by the Liquidators and its staff at
their usunl rates for such work subject t such amounts being taxed from time lo time as
the Court may direct xnd in any event tho account of ths Liquidators shall be texad prior
to its discharge, ‘




Case 2:05-cv-00149-JAM-DAD Document 79-1 Filed 12/07/06 Page 29 of 65

Jun 13 06 03:07p 00000000000000. 600000000000 . p.13
N

MainedbyrtuwptwhmthereuaﬁndmbytheCounofgossneghgenoelnﬁw :
* performance of their respoctive duties,

[6. Al astions, procesdings and any olaims whatsoever and whoresoever nitiated against the
Company, its asscts and property, arc hereby stayed and no person, which shall include o
body corporate, shall bring or continuo with a claim or proceading sgatust the Liquidators
or the Company without leavo of this Honuurable Cowt,

17. Al persons, firms and comorations are hereby restrained from terminating or interforing
with utilities or sorvices, including without Yimitation the furnishing of electricity, water,
- telephone or any other utilities of like Kind furnished up to the date of this Order to the
Company and such parties we herchy restrained and cnjoined from cutting off,
disconnecting or ajteting any such utilities or services to the Liguldator except with the
leave off this Honourable Court with not fess than 14 days oloar notice to the Liquidator,
smd thea only on such terms as this Honourable Court may order.

18. muwdaoﬁhmunyingomoﬂheirduﬁumdwonslbﬂkiumymplyfor
direction and guidance from this Honourable Court from time to time inchuding any
application as may be required for the amendment of this Order.

19,  The Liquidators, in their names or in the aame of the Company, shall be at Eberty to
apply for any permits licences, approvals or permissions a8 may be roquired by or
deemed nevessary pursuent 10 mny laws, governmental or regulatory authority, in the
pursuit and performance of their duties hercunder.

20,  The Liquidators ace not subject to posting security in respect of his appointment made
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2l.  ‘The Liquidators act solely in their capacity as | iquidators and without personal liability.
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The Bastem Caribbean Supreme Cour

In the High Court of Justice
Saint Vincen and the Grenadines
Claim No, 541  of 2004

IN THE MATTER OF ALTERNATIVE MARKET EXCHANGE LYD.

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES AC'T, No, 8 of 1994

AND ' '

IN THE MATTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS COMPANIES ACT, No. 18
of 1996

AND

IN THE MATTER OF TI(E INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE ACT, No. 13 of 1998

ORDER

i MARKS, MARTIN AND ASSOCIATES
Chambers

Melvills Sireet
Kingstown
Saint Vincent and the Gronadines




Lord, Bigsell & Brook LLP

111 south Waanker Drive
Chicago, Il 60606-4410
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EXHIBIT D
BROWN COMPLAINT
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT CO '{N AL
EASTERN DISTRICT OF mmo@:kﬁ“ )

' » I 1 COURY
UNITED STATES OF AVERICA as b‘{i c.osrmet S
) EAS..-
JOHN DOE a/k/a Robert Lewis Brown CR EEBLAINT
CASE NUMBER:
{Name and Address of Defendanf)

MAG- :04-202DAD
|, the undersigned complainant being duly swom state the following Is true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief. Between in or about January 2000 to on or about July 27, 2004, in the Eastem District
of California and elsewhere, defendant(s) did, et stanson Language of Ctsnse)

» See Attachment A alleging violations of mail fraud, conspiracy fo commit mail fraud, money laundering, conspiracy to
commit money laundering, and makmg of falsa staiements against defendant agamst defendant JOHN DOE a/k/a Robert
Brown,

in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section(s): 1341 (mail fraud), 371 (conspiracy to commit mall fraud),
1956(a)(2)(A) and (B)(i) (money laundering), 1956(h) (conspiracy to commit money laundering), 18 U.S.C.

§ 1001 (making of false statements); and section 2 (alding and abetting). | further state that | am a Spacial
Agent with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and that this complalnt is based on the following facts:

» Sea Affidavit in Support of Criminal Complaint

X Confinued on the attached sheet and made @ part hereof,

- pecial Agent John Sommercamp
Federal Bureau of Invesligation

Swom to before me, and subscribed In my presence

~August10,2004- at .Sacramento CA
Date City and Stats
HON, DALE A, DROZD 9
U.S. Magistrate Judge % 4. 9‘7’(

Name and Title of Judicial Officer Signature of Judiclal Officer

SEALED
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AFFIDAVIT

1. 1, John Sommercamp . Special Agent of the Federal Bureau of Investigation
(FBI), United States Department of Justice, having been duly sworn, do depose and state the
following: ¢ ,

-A, INTRODUCTION

2 I have been an FBI Special Agent for six years. For the past three years, [ have
been assigned o investigate financial fraud cases, including niail fraud, wire fraud, health care
fraud, and money laundering matters. I have been involved in more than 200 criminal '
investigations, and have attended training on criminal techniques, search and seizure, financial
crimes, fugitive investigations, and other related matters, Additionally, I have been formally
trained in analyzing financial transactions and records. Based on my training and experience, I
am familiar with the methods and practices used by individuals and organizations involved in
illicit activities that generate large amounts of income, including "Ponzi" schemes. These
methods include cash purchases, the purchasing of numerous monetary instruments with cash,
the use of aliases, nominees and shell corporations in an attempt to conceal their activities.

3. I make this affidavit in support of the issuence of a criminal complaint and arrest

warrant against:
b o Lewis Brown inafier "Brown"
Aliases: Robert Lewis Brown :
Description: ‘White, male, blue eyes, brown hair
Addresses: - Greenhythe-Fairview Plantation
Middleton Road
St. George, Barbados
Md p—
Cappanacuss Woods, Templenoe
Killarney, Co Kerry

Republic of Ireland
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4. From 1994, to the present, Brown has used the following personal identification
information: .

Date of Birth: 26 August 1946
Place of Birth: United States

Citizenship: United States
Passport Number: 035164352

Soc. Sec. No.: E 284-40-1401

5. The information set forth in this affidavit is based on my own investigation, and
the investigation of others, including, Special Agent Jason Lamb, Internal Revenue Service,
Criminal Investigation Division (IRS-CID"); Special Agent Christopher Fitzpatrick, IRS-CID;
and Senior Investigator Bill Meader, Califomia Department of Insurance. I have also been
assisted by other special agents and analysts with the FBI and IRS-CID. 1 have not included each

" - and every fact known to me concerning this investigation, Further, in many instances, I have

- summarized witness testimony rather than seiting forth a complete account of the statements
made by the witness. Finally, I have set forth only the facts that I believe are essential to
establish the necessary foundation to support a probable cause finding that Brown is guilty of the
crimes described herein, rather then including each and every fact known to me in this case.

6. - Based on the information set forth herein, there is probable cause to believe, and I
do believe, that from in or about January 2000 to July 2004, Brown, and others, both known and
unknown to the government, have committed offenses against the United States, to wit: Mail
Frand, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1341; Making of False Statements, in violation of 18 U.S.C,

§ 1001; Conspiracy to Commit Mail Fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C.§ 371, Money Laundering,
in violation of 18 U.8.C. §§ 1956(2)2) (A) and (B)(i); Conspiracy to Contmit Money
Laundering, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(h); and 18 U.S.C. § 2 ~ Aiding and Abetting.

B. BRIEF SUMMARY

7. . Based on this investigation, I believe that from at Jeast January 2000, through at
least July 2004, Brown, and others, including uncharged co-conspirators, engaged in a complex
and fraudulent scheme to defrand state insurance commissioners, various insurance companies,
and insurance customers in the United States including the Eastern District of Califomia
(“EDCA"). As part of the scheme, Brown, and others, sold worthless insurance policies, using
companies known as Tri-Continental Exchange, Ltd, ("TCE") and Combines Services Ltd.
("CSL"), each incorporated under the Jaws of St. Vincent and the Grenadines ("SVG").

8.  Ihave determined that from at least January 2000, through approximately July
2004, as part of the scheie to defrand, Brown, and others, sold, issued, and rencwed the bogus
. insurance policies falsely representing that the "policies” were backed by & pool of legitimate,
licensed, and rated insnrance companies, including Nationwide Mutual Insurance Co. and Globe

.2
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» . - -
Indemnity Company. Based on my investigation, | know that such "backing” companies are
legitimate, licensed, and rated in the United States. However, neither TCE nor CSL had any
‘business relationship with those companies, and were not authorized to issue policies using their
name. Defendant Brown, and others, used various means to carry out the fraud, and to give the
appearance that the insurance policies were backed as represented. In particular, Brown, and
others, used the names of shell companies in SVG and Nevis, controlled by uncharged
co-conspirators, which had names deceptively similar to the well-known admitted, licensed and
rated companies listed above and hmin, to make it appear that the policies had legitimate

9, Aspartoftheschenwtodeﬁ'aud,Bmwnmdothersmvolvedmtheschem used
millions of dollars of premiums for personal benefit, including the purchase of real property in
Arkansas, Ireland, Barbados, and elsewhere, and to funnel money to mumerous offshore bank
accounts in the States of Jersey, Ireland, Gibraltar, and elsewhere.

C. BACKGROUND OF ROBERT BROWN

10. Through this investigation, I have deterrmned that in or about-1994, Brown falsely
assumed the identity of "Robert Lewis Brown." The previous identity used by Brown is
unknown,

11.  According to State of Ohio records, I have determined that an individual known as
"Robert Lewis Brown" was born in Akron, Ohio, on August 26, 1946, and on or about April 20,
1962, was issued social security mumber 284-40-1401, "Robert Lewis Brown” had criminal
convictions, and according to Social Security records "Robert Lewis Brown" died in Las Vegas,
Nevada on September 2, 2001, -

12.  In September 1994, Brown submiited a passport application in Las Vegas, which -
was issued in Los Angeles, California. On the application, Brown listed his date of birth as
August 26, 1946, and his social security number as 284-40-1401. On the passport application,
Brown lists his driver’s license as State of Nevada Driver's license number 316880280346, I
have compared the photograph of "Robert Lewis Brown” with the passport photo submitted by
Brown and determined that they are not the same person. Further, the signature of Brown on the
application does not match the-known signature of "Robert Lewis Brown." On or about
September 30, 1994, Brown was issued United States Passport number 035164352, Brown's .
passport was due to expire on September 29, 2004, but was renewed on or about April 2004 in
Barbados.

- 13, Onorabout March 17, 2004, Keith Morcroft, & business associate of Brown's,
identified the passport photograph as Brown, the person he knows through his business dealings
with TCE and CSL.
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14.  Inaddition, I have compared Brown's passport photograph submitted by him to
the U.S, Department of State with a videotaped deposition, taken in London, England, on or
about September 8, 2003. The person depicted in the video appears to be the same person as
depicted on the passport photograph. At this deposition, Brown identifies himself under oath as
"Robert Brown" and testifics about his relationship with TCE.

"15. Onorabout July 12, 1996, Brown submitted immigration documents to reside in
SVG. In those documents, Brown:stated that his date of birth was August 26, 1946, and listed
his social security number as 284-40-1401, and his passport number as 035164352,

16.  Based on information obtained from the Republic of Ireland and Barbados, I know
that Brown owns property and resides in these countries at certain times of the year. Specifically,
. 1 am informed that in or about 2000, Brown purchased a home in Barbados located at
Greenhythe-Fairview Plantation, Middleton Road, St. George, Barbados. I am also aware that,
Brown usua]ly resides in Barbados from September until June, after which time he travels to a
second home in Ireland located at Cappanacuss Woods, Templenoe, Killarney, County Kerry,

17, Inaddition, according to bank officers in Ireland and the States of Jersey, I know that
Brown used his false passport to open umerous foreign-bank accounts. Specifically, Brown
opened an account in the States of Jersey at the Royal Bank of Canada, Ltd., and an account in
Ireland at Allied Irish Bank, to which he transferred millions of dollars of premium payments.

18,  Iam also aware that Brown married a person known as “Shirley Darlene
Whitaker," aka "Ali" (hereinafter "Whitaker") in Blaine, Washington. On or about July 11,
1996, a certificate of marriage, number 70947, was issued in the State of Washington for Brown
and Whitaker. Through this investigation, I have determined that in or about 1995, Whitaker

began using the identity of "Shirley Darlene Whitaker,”

19.  According to records from the Social Security Administration, | have determined
that an individual known as "Shirley Darlene Whitaker* was born in Elkin, North Carolina, on
September 22, 1953, and in or about August 1971, was issued social security number
240-02-4738.

20.  On or about January 5, 1995, Whitaker applied for a United States Passport in
* Clark County, Nevada, using a birth date of September 22, 1953, and a social security number as
240-02-4738. The signature of Whitaker on the passport application does not appear to match
the known signature of "Shirley Darlene Whitaker" as seen on the application for her Social
~Security Card. On or about January 12, 1995, Whitaker applied for a passport in Las Vegas,
which was issued from Los Angeles, She was thereafter issued passport number 035246046.
According to records, "Shirley Darlenc Whitaker" died on August 26, 1995 in New Mexico.

21.  Onorabout July 12, 1996, Whitaker submitted an immigration application to
reside in SVG. In this document, Whitaker listed her date of birth as September 22, 1953 and her
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social security number as 240-02-4738. Her passport number was listed as 035246046, Whitaker
listed her husband as Robert L. Brown. The person pictured in the photo of Whitaker on the
immigration application appears to be the same person as pictured in the photo on Whitaker's

passport application.
D. THEINSURANCE SCHEME TO DEFRAUD
(1) Overvi g Frand

22.  Based on this investigation, I believe that from at least January 2000, through
approximately July 2004, TCE and CSL sold and/or renewed purported insurance policies to
customers in the United States. Since at least 1996, TCE and CSL have had offices in SVG, at
2nd Level, Marcole Place, Halifax Street, Kingstown, St. Vineent and the Grenadines,

23. According to documents obtained in this investigation, and sworn testimony from
Brown, from 1996, to approximately June 30, 2001, Brown identified himself as the managing
director of the TCE. After that date, Brown identified himself as a "consultant,” but remained
actively involved in TCE and CSL business and operations in SVG, and was the sxgnatory on
TCE's bank account, through at least Jaly 2004, :

24,  According to documents obtained in this investigation, from 1994 to 1996, Brown
operated TCE and CSL as insurance providers in Ontario, Canada, until the Financial Services
Commission of Ontario lssuedaCeaseandDesnstorderagamstthese companies,

25, Although they have been selling purported insurance policxes in the United States,
TCE, CSL, and their affiliates have never been authorized to sell insurance in any state in the
Umted States.

26, Further, neither TCE nor CSL was authorized to sell insurance under the laws of
SVG. According 1o & letter dated December 6, 2002, from Grenville Joln, Commissiorier of
International Insurance, St. Vincent and the Grenadines, Offshore Finarice Authority, TCE and
CSL were listed as International Business Corporations, but neither TCE nor CSL were licensed
to conduct international insurance business, CSL registered as an intemational insurance
business in 2004,

-21..  According to witnesses and documents, T know that from 1998 to at least 2004,
Lloyd Thompson was the lead underwriter for TCE. Thompson has held an insurance broker's
license from 1974 until 1994, when according to State of California records, he let the license
lapse. Asthe Lead Underwriter, Thompson was responsible for supervising other underwnters,
who were SVG natives, His role in TCE was to review all applications for insurance and
determine which attachments to include in the policy for issuance.
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28. ° From approximately 1996, through at Jeast 2003, Jennings Bryan Shannon, aka
Jack Shannon, operated American Continental Claims Service, Inc., located at 770 South Brea
Boulevard, Suite 208, Brea, Califomia. Jack Shannon was held out by Brown as a licensed
claims manager, and the person responsible for adjusting TCE claims.

29,  |am aware that from approximately Janvary 2000, to approximately July 27,
2004, present, TCE, through CSL, has been frandulently issuing and renewing purported
insurance policies written for U.S.citizens and businesses, focusing primarily on difficult to
insure industries, such as taxi drivers, bars and taverns, amusement, and long-haul truckers,

30.  Brown, and others, marketed the TCE program of insurance to the hard 1o insure
individuals and businesses, often through barter clubs, which allowed the insurance premiums to
_ be paid with trade dollars and cash.

31,  Brown, and others, falsely represented that TCE and CSL insurance policies were
backed by a "pool” of licensed and rated insurance companies, which allegedly included, among
others: Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company, Globe Indemnity Company, Royal &

" SupAlliance Group, United Guarantee Insurance Company, Citadel General Assurance
Company; Progressive Insurance, Selective Insurance Company of America, Eagle Insurance,
Vanguard Fire & Casualty, First Colonial Insurance Company, North Star Reinsurance, Corp.,
and American Transportation Insurance Company.

32.  According to documents and swom statements obtained by your affiant, I know
that the purported "becking” companies are legitimate, licensed, and rated in the United States.
However, none of them have, or had, any business relationship with TCE, CSL, Brown, or its
operatives, Indeed, as a result of deceptive practices by TCE and CSL, Nationwide Mutual
Insurance Company obtained a restraining order and pérmanent imjunction against TCE in the
Central District of California in 2001.

33.  To carry out the frand, and mslead insurance pmchasers into believing that they
had insurance backed by licensed and rated insurers, Brown, Thompson, and other
co-conspirators, created, or used, and caused to be created or used, shell companies in SVG and
elsewhere, with names nearly identical to the licensed and rated company they falsely represented
were providing this insurance. The following is a partial list of the names of the created
companies (on the left) and the names of legitimate cormpanies (on the right):

TCE/CSY, COMPANY RATED & LICENSED U.S. COMPANY
Nationwide Insurance Corporation - | Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company
Globe Indemnity and Casualty Limited Globe Indemmity Company
United Guarantee Reassurance Limited United Guaranty Insurance Company
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North Star Reinsurance Group, Inc. North Star Reinsurance Corporation
Guardian Underwriters Assurance, Ltd, Guardian Insurance

34.  Theinvestigation has revealed that TCE and CSL do not sell insurance backed by
licensed, and rated companies as represented. Rather, TCE, CSL, and Brown are part of a
criminal enterprise that coliects premiums, but fails to provide the.insurance as represented. To
lull insureds and keep thém at bay, TCE, CSL, Brown, and others mailed what appeared to be an
insurance policy to a customer, In many instances, TCE and CSL would pay small insurance
claims, but deny, contest, or litigate the larger ones, Brown and other TCE and CSL operatives
used insurance premiums to purchase real property in Arkansas, Ireland, Barbados, and
elsewhere, and to funnel money to numerous oﬂhorebankaccounts in the States of Jersey,
Gibraltar, and eisewhere.

35.  1am aware that in carrying out this scheme, Brown conspired with others, both
known and unknown to the grand jury, who knowingly assisted him with the TCE and CSL
program. In particular, from approximately 1999 to 2004, Lloyd Thompson, was the lead
underwriter for TCE and CSL, and was paid for this work. He resided in SVG and worked
closely with Brown. He was absent for about one year when he suffered a stroke. Inthis role, he
was actively involved underwriting TCE and CSL by making quotes and helping to issue
policies.

36.  Asthe Lead Underwriter, Thompson was respongible for supervising four other :
underwriters, all who were SVG natives. Two of the underwriters working under Thompson -
.were Diane and Lisa LNU. His role in TCE was to review all applications for insurance and
determine which attachments to include in the pohcy for issvance, Thompson would routinely
contact clients by phone, facsimile or email prior to directing the creation of the policy.

Thompson explained that while at TCE, he reviewed applications, and had clerical staff prepare
the applications and attachments. Thus, his staff would type up the face sheet policy including
the client's information and property to be insured with references to the included attachments,
The prepared policies would then be sent to the clients via mail. Thompson believes that he and
his team of 4 underwriters normally processed 6 to 15 policies per week. During the course of
this investigation, I have reviewed documents prepared, or caused to be prepared, by Thompson
in which he specifically identifies the lead insurer as “Nationwide” or “Globe Indemnity."

37.  Inaddition, I know that Thompson usually received the completed applications at
his office via a facsimile machine from the customers or "consultants,” working on their behalf,
Thompson explained that in "direct insurance,” the clients purchase insurance directly fmm the
insurance company. Brokers selling insurance for TCE would not be "direct insurance.”
Thompson explained that there were "consultants,” who would find clients and refer them to
TCE. The "consultants” would often be the party who not only faxed the applications to TCE,
but the ones that he would deal with over the phone. Thompson also gave the client or

1
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consultants instructions for payment of the premiums. Generally the arrangement would be 25%
down at the inception of the policy and 3 installments for the balance due. Policies would be
sent directly to the customer involved in the TCE program.

38,  Iam further aware that in or about approximately 1999 or 2000, while retrieving
" applications from the facsimile machine in SVG, Thompson saw a Cease and Desist Order from
the State of Alabama, Thompsm: had previous dealings with insurance in Alabama, and stated
that he did not take the order seriously. He said that in the normal course of business, the clerical
staff would have delivered the orderto the Director, which would have been Brown. Evenin
light of this cease and desist order, Thompson continued to underwrite policies for TCE and
CSL.

2) TCE and CSL Policies and Claims

39.  According to information obtained in this mvmhganon, I know that Brown, and
others working with him, issued palicies to clients in many states in the United States, While the
method varied somewhat, the practice typically involved the following:

* . (8). TCE and CSL marketed its program to hard to insure industries such as
cab drivers, truckers, amusement, and contractors. Neither Brown, TCE, nor CSL, however,
were licensed in California to sell insurance. I have confirmed that TCE and CSL sold insurance
in approximately 9 additional states where they were not licensed to do s6.

(b) TCE, CSL, and Brown advertised and sold insurance through brokers and
agents, In particular, I know that TCE and CSL advertised its program through barter exchanges,
such as "ITEX," which allows consumers nationwide to purchase goods and services using barter
dollars. As of July 27, 2004, TCE maintained a listing with ITEX for the sale of insurance. Jack
Wallace, David Yoder, and Robert Brown were listed as contacts, and the address for TCE was
listed as 250 H Street, #846, Blaine, Washington, A toll free contact number was also listed. 1
also know that brokers and agents marketed the program directly to clients and sent solicitations.

(c) Once aclient was interested in the TCE and CSL program, Thompson and
others working with them, prepared and faxed a quote for the insurance. In most instances the
cost of the TCE and CSL policy was far less than similar policies offered by carriers authorized
to do business in Califomia, or the state where the customer resided. If the client accepted the
quote, Lioyd Thompson would send confirmation of the security and policy number, and other
information. In a particular communication involving a policy for Paradise Roofing, of South
Leke Tahoe, California, the security was identified as “Nationwide,” and was dated November
28,2000, -

(d)  Based on my investigation, I am aware that Brown, Thompson and others
- instructed customer’s to mail their premiums checks to:
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Tri-Continental Exchange, Ltd.
536 E. Dunlap Avenue, Suite 9,
Box No. 470

Phoenix, Arizona; or

Tri-Continental Exchange, Ltd.
822 E. Unioa Hills, Suite 2,
Box No. 138 -

Phoenix, Arizona

The customers were instructed to make the checks payable 10 TCE.

(¢) The mail drop at 536 E. Dunlap Avenue was maintained at F&F Mailboxes
in the name North American Collection, a company incorporated in the State of Arizona in 1999,
The mail drop for 822 E. Union Hills was maintained at Poste Haste, and was opened by Lioyd
Thompson, Jr., and Terri Wilson in the names of TCE and North American Collection in 1996, 1
know based on docurnents and interviews that checks sent to these inail drops were then sent via
U.S. Mail or private or comumercial interstate carrier to SVG." As set forth more fully below, once
received in SVG, the checks were stamped "For Deposit Only, Tri-Continental Exchange,
account No. 1 535 0332 2247," and sent via U.S. Mail or private or commercial interstate carrier
to U.S. Bank located at 280 H Street, Blaine, Washington, for deposit into an account opened by
Brown on or ebout July 1, 1996, in the name Tri-Continental Exchange Ltd ("TCE US Bank
Account").

()  Based on my review of TCE deposits and bank records, and my familiarity
with TCE operations, I have determined that from approximately 1998 through May of 2004,
more than $23.9 million in insurance premiums were deposited into the TCE US Bank Account,
1 have also determined that from these deposits, more than $10 miltion were transferred offshore
via bank wires to accounts controlled by Brown and his associates, as set forth below. In
addition, the premium checks deposited into the Blaine, Washington account were used to pay
for overhead and employee salaries, as well as to pay claims.

(8) Although domestic brokers are prohibited by state law from taking a
commission, and Brown falsely represented that no commissions were taken, I know that in
pmcuce commissions were paid, Specxﬁcally, brokers and agents were allowed to deduct a
commission from the insurance premiums paid by their clients. Brown instructed brokers to call
this fee a "referral fee,” which he said would "coincidentally” be equal to'a "commission."

(8) Inaddition, I know from my investigation that the TCE and CSL
documents were drafted in a deceptively confusmg manner making it virtually impossible for the
insurer to determine with whom they were in contract for the insurance. For example, on most
"policies," "CSL" is listed across the top of each page. However, the “declaration page”
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identifies the insurer as the "Direct Purchase Insurance Pool." On other documents and
communications such as quotes or cvidence of insurance cards, the insurer is listed as
“Nationwide,” or “Globe Indemnity.” A further confusmg fact was that customers were
instructed to make their checks payable to *T

() - Based on my investigation and review of documents, I know that some
TCE und CSL customers who purchased policies, submitted claims to TCE and CSL. Based on
my investigation, I believe that part of the fraud was to “lull" customers into befieving that they
had valid insurance by paying smaller claims, but larger claims would be denied. However, I
have determined that in many instances, TCE and CSL failed to pay larger claims citing vnusual
exclusions in the policies. 1 have also talked to litigants seeking to enforce claims that indicate
that TCE and CSL attempt to avoid service of process. In particular, while TCE represents that it
bad a domestic claims office in Brea, Califomia, it required litigants to serve Jegal documents on
TCE in SVG pursuaut to the Hague Convention. As a result, claims were more difficult to
pursue.

(j) Based on my investigation, I know that neither TCE nor CSL had the necessary
capitalization to allow it to cover potential claims. I have specifically examined approximately 4
policies issued by TCE and CSL.in 2000, which were in effect from 2000 to 2001. These
policies exposed TCE and CSL to risks in excess of $3.5 million. I believe that there were many
additional policies based on the invoices and other claim documents I have reviewed. In
addition, Brown has stated that TCE and CSL issued approximately 30,000 to 40,000 policies
from 1986 to 2000, some of which would have remained in existence afier the issue date; Based
on my examination of the TCE US Bank Account, I know that from approximately September
2000, through January 2002, the highest total balance in this account was $989,275 (as of
November 23, 2001). By November 26, 2001, this amount was reduced to $389,048, based on
withdrawals and interational wires, The average daily balance in the account was
approximately $300,000 to $400,000. According to the California Department of Insurance, this
would be inadequate to cover the claims exposure of TCE's and CSL’s policies.

(3  False Statements By Brown to Stanlev Melton re the "Insurance Pool"

40.  On or about March 30, 2004, Special Agent Jason Lamb spoke with Stanley
Melton, IV, of Opelika, Alabama telephonicelly. Based on information obteined from Melton, I
am aware that from 1999 to the present, Melton was President of R&L Trucking Company, Inc,
located at 2405 South Uniroyal Road, Opelika, Alabama, 36801, R&L is a long-haul trucking
company that operates in Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Missouri,
Mississippi, North Carolina, Oklahoms, South Carolina, Tenmessee, Texas, Illinois, Indiana,
Kansas, and Ohio. Melton has provided tlns information to law enforcement volmtanly, and has

0o known ¢riminal record.
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41, Stanley Melton first came in contact with TCE through Dennis Staska, a broker
for Schooler & Associates in Jimmerson, Alabama. Staska explained that TCE provided
commercial carries insurance at a discounted rate, Staska advised Melton to contact Brown with
any questions, and gave Melton Brown's phone number. I am aware that on or about August 28,
2000, Melton completed an application for insurance through TCE and CSL. On September 25,
2000, Melton reviewed the TCE and CSL proposal, and understood that “Nationwide and various
pooled underwriters” were the backing company. On or about October 3, 2000, Melton received
what appeared to be confirmation of insurance coverage, and on or about October 4, 2000, he
received proof of insurance. On October 5, 2000, Melton paid TCE $16,650, via cashier’s check,
for the purported coverage, which check was delivered to his broker Staska,

42,  Before purchasing the policy, Melton spoke telephonically with a person who held
himself out to be Brown. Melton audio-taped four of his conversations, The recording was not
done at the direction of law enforcement. I have received copies of the tapes'and transcriptions
thereof, The recordings appear to be accurate and authentic, and are consistent with statements
made by Melton in his interview. I am informed and believe that the voice on the tapes is that of
the person who holds himself out as Robert Brown. I have researched the telephone number that
Melton used to place this call and have found that TCE was the subscriber for the telephone

_number. In addition, during one.cenversation, Brown stated that he was in Barbados, Based on
real estate records, I believe that Brown was residing in Barbados as of about May 2000,

" During a conversation recorded in or about September or October 2000, when
askcdaboutthemsurance,Brownstatedasfollows

###

RB: The insurance pool itself is an insurance pool. It's not a single company,
The insurance pool itself consists of a bunch of companies, at the moment
34 of them with one company usually taking the lead position because all
of the filings don't allow for the listing of 34 companies. In other words,
very similar to Lloyds of London. If'you are familiar with Lloyds of
London,

SM: lam.

RB: Lloyds is not an insurance company. It's an amalgamation of [inaudible].
And that's basically what this is, With the slight difference that in Lloyds,
usually one licensed risk writer is designated as the insurer. With this, all
34 participate in the writing ofﬂ:cnsk,butomleadcompanyperfomsall
of the ﬁhngs, okay? .

SM: Isthat Nationwide?
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54. There was also written communication to Leverett about the insurance program. In
amemorandum dated March 3, 2000, to Leverett, and signed by Robert Brown, Brown indicates:

L

I refer 1o your memorandum dated March 2, 2000, which was received by my
office on March 3, 2000, respecting the reference matter. ...

Insurance Pool

Respecting my Jenuary 10, 2000, response to your January 8§, 2000, letter in light
of the complexity and subtleness of this program, it is understandable, but
unfortunate that both yourself and Keith may have been left with the wrong
impression about the securities.. For further clarity, please note the following.

Question (b): Who is the sectn@w?

Answer (b): The security is the emalgamation of several of severa] [sic]
{companies] of the pool which includes Nationwide, Progressive, Globe
Indemnity, and other well known companies. The risk will probably utilize
Nationwide as the lead company. :

" Notwithstanding any incorrect interpretation that may have been engendered by
this answer, I stand by it. The securities are properly identified.

Question (g): Does captive bave audited financials and E&O protection? We need
to see this kind of information,

Answer (g): As indicated above, the facility isnota "captive". Financial
statements for individual securities can be obtained from A.M. Best.

As to the first part of the answer, the facility is not a "captive" asindicated. Asto
the second part of the answer, I stand by it. Financial statements for similarly
named companies are found in A M. Best. Howevex, for clarity, whether or not
the companies are U.S.A., companies or St. Vincent Companies is moot since any
financial institution that does business from within St. Vincent is subject to St.
Vincent law in any case,

###
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(5) False Documents Created by Brown

55.  Onorabout May 19, 2004, and via letter dated June 18, 2004, Bemard Talmas,
Esq., counsel for Brown, produced documents to the U.S. Attorney's Office, Talmas represented
that the documents were from Brown, and that Brown stated that they were factually true and
accurate. These documents were produced by Talmes ini an attempt to exculpate Brown from the
criminal conduct alleged herein, -

56. I subsequently compared this document obtained from Brown through his lawyer
1o the same document produced independently by Leverett, which was also provided to the U.S.
Attomney's Office. It appears that the document provided by Brown was materially different from
the one provided by Leverett, as follows:

i#d

I refer to your memorandum dated March 2, 2000, which was received by my
office on March 3, 2000, respecting the reference matter. ...

Inswance Pool |

Respecting my January 10, 2000, response to your January 8, 2000, letter in light
of the complexity and subtleness of this program, it is understandable, but

" unfortunate that both yourself and Keith may have been left with the wrong
impression about the securities. ‘For further clarity, please note the following:

Question (b); Who is the security?

Answer (b); The security is the amalgamation of several of the alien pool
companies. As we discussed, while some have similar names to well known
main stream insurers, none of these companies are admitted in any U.S,
‘State. Neither are anv of the pool companies related to the well known A.M.

" Best listed American carriers that may coincidentally bear a similar name,
The risk will probably utilize Nationwide as the lead company to be listed on
USA105 as vou reguested in our Jast telephone conversation.

Notwithstanding any incorrect interpretation that may have been engendered by
this answer, I stand by it. The securities are properly identified. ‘

Question(g): Does captive have audited financials and E&O protection? We need
to see this kind of information. '

Answer (g): As indicated above, the facility is not a "captive”, Financial
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statements for individual securities may pot be distributed due to St. Vincent
lality laws. Furthe if you check A.M. Best vou will not find

these insurance pool companies listed.

As to the first part of the answer, the facility is not a "captive" as indicated. Asto
the second pan‘. of the answer, I stand by it. Financial statements for similarly
named companies are found in A.M. Best. Those are not these offshore
companies. However, for clarity, whether or not the companies are U.S.A.
companies or St, Vincent companies is moot, since any financial institution that
does business from within St. Vincent is subject to St. Vincent law in any case,

#R#

57.  1kmow based on information obtained from the California Department of
Insurance “captive” refers to a representative of an insurer who is required to submit business to
" & particular company, often in exchange for an allowance for office expenses, as well as an
extensive range of employee benefits such as pensions, life insurance, or health benefits.

58. lalso.obtained a copy of the January 10, 2000, memorandum refercaced in the
March 3, 2000, memo set forth above. This was a document addressed to Keith Morcroft from
Robert Brown, The memorandum is signed and the sipnature matches the known signature of
‘Brown. Leverett stated that he received a copy of this document in or about January 2000. In
this memorandum, Brown states, in relevaut part:

#i#

b. The security is the amalgamation of several of the pool which includes
Nationwide, Progressive, Globe Indemnity, and other well known names,
The risk will probably utilize Nationwide as the lead company.

###

59. M, Talmas also provided the government with a copy of the January 10, 2000,
memorandum, The documents are substantially similar to the one provided by Leverett.
However, I have identified two paragraphs with material differences, In particular, in the Janvary
10, 2000, memo, produced to Leverett by Brown, the document states:

#44
The security is the amalgamation of several of several [sic] [companies] of the
pool which includes Nationwide, Progressive, Globe Indemnity, and other well

known companies. The risk will probably utilize Nationwide as the lead
company. . .
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As indicated above, the facility :s not a "captive”, Financial statements for
individual securities can be obtained from A.M. Best.

###

60. The purported copy of the same document was also produced by Talmas to the
U.S. Attomeys Office, and stated:

###

The security is the amalgamation of several of the alien pool fompan anies. Aswe
discussed, while some have simjlar names to well kno ain stream
insurers. none of these companies are admitted in any U.S. State. Neither are
any of the pool companies related to the well known A.M. Best listed
American carriers that may cojncidentally bear a similar name. The risk will
probably utilize Nationwide as the lead company-te be listed on USA 105 as vou

requested in our last telephone conversation, ...
As indicated above, the facility is nota "captive®. Financial statements for
individual securities mav not be distributed due fo St. Vincent eonfidentiality

laws, Fuﬂermo& i you check A.M. Best You will not find these insnrance
pool companies listed.

#4#

61. Based on conversations with Leverett, I believe that the documents produced
by Talmas for Brown have been materially altered, and not the other way around. 1base this
conclusion on the following: (1) the documents produced by Leverett are signed by Brown, and
the signature matches the known signature for Brown. By comparison the documents produced
by Talmas are unsigned; and (2) a copy of the unaltered January 10, 2000, memorandum was
faxed to a third-party, Joe Dreher in Deluth, Georgia, on o about February 14, 2000, The
_document sent to Dreher matches the document provided by Leverett.

E.  CEASE AND DESIST ORDERS

62. Ihave learned from information obtained from other goverriment sources and
- thtough news releases posted on numerous governmenta) Internet websites in the U,S. and
Canada, that several U.S. states and Canadian provinces have issued Cease and Desist Orders
regarding TCE and CSI, insurance activities, State actions against TCE, CSL, and its affiliates
include the follow:ng cease and desist orders;
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Colorado, May 30, 2002, (against TCE, CSL, United Guarantee Reassorance, Lid,
Globe Indemnity and Casualty, Ltd., North American Collections, LLC, Armada
Assurance, Ltd, Insurance Service Center, and Valerie Freitas for selling insurance
without out authorization and frand); .

Oklahoma, July 10, 2001, (against TCE for selling insurance without a license);
Florida, Qpril 23, 2001, (ggainst TCE for selling insurance without a license);

Alabama, October 3, 2000, {against Brown, TCE, CSL, James Gordon Schoolar,
Schoolar & Associates for lack of information about location and financial
condition of insurer; no anthority to issue insurance);

Minnesota, February 5, 1999, (against Armada Assurance, Ltd and TCE, for
selling insurance without a license);

Oregon, September 26, 1999, (against Brown, TCE, Armada Asstrance, Ltd. for
selling insurance as agents without & license and without the insurer being
licensed);

Washington, May 27, 1998, (against TCE and Robert Brown, for soliciting
insurance without an insurance agent's, broker's or surplus lines brokers' license
and TCE solicited insurance that failed to disclose the name and location of the
principle office of the insure).

Nevada, September 19, 1995, (against TCE and Robert Brown, for engaging in
_ unauthorized insurance activities in the State of Nevada).

63. In addition, I know from examining the Ontario ixxsmance Commission Internet
website, that in or about June 28, 1996, the Superintendent of Insurance in Ontario, Canada,
issued a cease and desist order against Brown and TCE for carrying on the business of insurance
without a license.

64. During the course of this investigation, I am aware that Brown received notice of

the State of Alabama cease and desist order issued in 2000. Lloyd Thompson has also
acknowledged receiving a copy of the State of Alabama cease & desist order.

F. SUMMARY OF EDCA POLICIES

65.  During the course of this investigation, I, and other law enforcement agents, have
spoken with insurance brokers and agents, who, based on deceptive information obtained from

18




v o4 ] (] [ 3F]

Case 2:05-cv-00149-JAM-DAD Document 79-1 Filed 12/07/06 Page 50 of 65

Brown about TCE and CSL, sold purported insurance policies in the EDCA. As aresult of the
scheme to defraud, at least 4 policies were sold to purchasers of TCE and CSL policies in the
Eastemn District of California.

66. As part of this investigation, on July 27, 2004, James Bowers, of Phoenix, AZ.
Bowers was telephonically interviewed, Accordingly, I know that Bowers has worked in the
insurance business most of his life. In or about 2000, Bowers heard about TCE and CSL, He
called Brown and inquired about the program. According to Bowers, Brown told him that the
program consisted of a consortium of 20 to 30 companies which each subscribed to a portion of
the risk. Brown told Bowers 5 or 6 names of the pool to include, Globe Indemnity, Nationwide,
Royal Sun Alliance and North Star Reinsurance. Bowers stated that he recognized these as large
U.S. companies. He particularly remembered Globe Indemnity as he knew from his own
experience that it was a large and reputable company.

67. When Bowers asked Brown why these-large reputable companies would
participate in an offshore insurance program, Brown explained that it allowed these large
companies 1o pick up additional lines of business without affecting their pre-existing book of
domestic insurance. Based on Brown's explanation, and knowing the reputation of these
companies, Bower contacted other-brokers end passed on the information that Brown had
relayed. Bowers contacted several brokers about TCE with whom he already established a
relationship in the insurance business, including a Car] Savoia of Target Financial, located in
San Diego. Bower explained the program to the Savoia, specifically relying on the information
provided to him by Brown. Bowers said that received an "introduction fee” for bringing the
brokers into the program.

68.  Aspart of this investigation, on July 27, 2004, Special Agent Jason Lamb
telephonically interviewed Carl Savoia, the owner of Target Financial & Insurance Services in
San Diego. Savoia confirmed that he spoke with both Bowers and Brown about the TCE
program, Based on these conversations, Savoia understood that TCE's program was legitimate,
and that TCE and CSL were backed by a pool of licensed and rated insurance companies such as
Nationwide, Savoia relayed this information to brokers, including Alyssa Westbrook, at his firm,
and at his direction, they solicited clients in the EDCA, and elsewhere, Savoia would not have
sold the policies to the clients had he known that TCE program was different than was
represented.

69.  Further, based on interviews with Target's brokers and clients, that in or about
January 2001, Target informed its clients, among other things, that the TCE program was backed
by admitted and rated insurance carriers, Those interested in purchasing a policy, would be sent
a quote outlining the program and cost. Target brokers directed its customers to send their
checks to TCE's mail drop in Phoenix, Arizona, but many clients sent checks to Target, who
forwarded the funds to TCE.
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70. _ As part of this investigation, I, or agents working with me, have spoken with some
of the mdxvnduals and entities who reside in the EDCA who purchased purported insurance
through TCE. Their experiences with the TCE program are nearly identical, I have set forth
summaries regarding 4 victims, as follows:

(@  OnJuly 29, 2004, Chris Fitzpatrick spoke with Victim 1 (V-1) located in
Middleton, California. In or about January 2001, V-1 received information from Westbrook
about the TCE program. Thereafter, V-1 received a quote, which contained information about
the policy, including the fact that the insurance was provided by a California approved carrier
and rated A by A.M. Best's Guide, V-1 stated that he needed an insurance company with an "A"
rating 1o bid on certain subcontracts. After receiving the TCE quote, V-1 sent, and caused to be
sent 2 $1,900 check via the U.S. Mail to Target, and, thereafier, paid at least four monthly
premiums to TCE via U.S. Mail, V-1 stated he would not have purchased the policy if it was not
an approved California insurer and rated in A.M. Best as represented.

()  OnJuly 29, 2004, Chris Fitzpatrick spoke with V-2 of Roofrangers, (V-2),
located in Galt, California, V-2 received a solicitation from Terget about the TCE program,
which he examined for cost, limits, rating and deductible. He does not know what A.M. Best is,
but he knew that he wanted a company to be A-rated or better. He specifically makes sure that
his policy is not rated C or D since he is worried about "having to contact everyone to try and
collect compensation from the company” if a problem ever occurred, He sent his initial payment
to Target for the purchase of the TCE policy on or about November 6, 2000, in the amount of
$1,795. He had to make installment payments directly to TCE later, whlchlsevxdencedbya
check made payable to TCE dated Jenuary 30, 2001, for $890. This check was mailed via U.S.
Mail to TCE via the Phoenix, Arizona mail drop to SVG, and forwarded via commercial and

- interstate carrier to TCE's US Bank account in Blaine, Washington for deposit.

(c)  OnApril 21,2004, and June 28, 2004, Special Agent Jason Lamb spoke
to V-3 of Paradise Roofing and Repair, South Lake Tahoe, California. V-3 stated that he learned
about the TCE program through Target, after being solicited to purchase a general liability
policy. According to V-3, the Target broker, Alyssa Westbrook, relayed to him that the TCE
policy was rated and licensed in the United States. Paradise Roofing purchased a policy in or
about January 2001. When V-3 received the policy, he was very skeptical of its coverage
because it contained numerous exclusions, which he had not seen in previous policies he had
purchased, V-3 further stated that he understood that the insurer was TCE, V-3 stated that his
initial premium check was sent via U.S, Mail to Target in San Diego, California, and forwarded
via U.S, Mail by Target to TCE. V-3 stated that his subsequent premium checks were mailed via

_ U.S. Mail to TCE, 536 East Dunlap Avenue, Suite 9, Phoenix, Arizona, V-3 stated Paradise
Roofing cancelled the policy after one year, and would not have purchased it ifhe knew that
TCE, CSL, and North Star Reinsurance Group, lncorpomed. the entity listed as the insureron .
the pohcy, were not rated or licensed insurance companies.

(9 On orabout Angust 2, 2004, Jason Lamb spoke with V-4, of Peoples
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Roofing, of El Dorado, Californja. V-4 stated that he learned about the TCE program through
Target, after being solicited to purchase a general liability policy. According to V-4, the Target
broker, Valeri Orsini, relayed to him that the TCE policy was rated and licensed im the United
States. Specifically, the solicitation stated that TCE was A-15 rated by A M. Best and approved
to do business in California on a non-admitted basis.” V-4 purchased a policy in or about

- November 2000. V-4 received a declaration sheet, but does not recall receiving a policy. V-4
further stated that he understood that the insurer was TCE. V-4 stated that his initial premium
checks were sent to Target in San Diego, California, and forwarded by Target to TCE. V-4
stated that his subsequent premium checks were mailed to TCE, in Phoenix, Arizona by U.S.
Mail. V-4 stated he cancelled the policy after incurving a claim, which resulted in a significant
rate increase. V-4 stated that he would not have purchased it if he knew that TCE, CSL, and
North Star Reinsurance Group, Incorporated, the entity listed as the insurer on the policy, were
not rated or licensed insurance companies.

G. TED GS
71.  Based on my investigation, I know that defendant Brown and others, on or about

the dates set forth below, knowingly caused items to be sent by mail or private or commercial
interstate carrier. These mailings from victim investors include the following:

Ct. | Victim | Date From To Item
Phoenix, AZ
1 (V1 j0 Middleton, CA | 21,4 [ evel, Marcole Place, $1,900 check
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines,

2 | v | 22601 | Middieton, A | ThocRIX, AZ ,
‘ 2nd Level, Marcole Place, $2,665 check
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines

3 |Vl 3/21/02 | Middleton, CA | Phoenix, AZ $2,000 check
2nd Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines

4 | V-l 10/24/02 | Middleton, CA .| Phoenix, AZ $1020 check
2ud Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines
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2nd Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines

6 |V2  |13001 fg s | PhomixAZ $890 check

2nd Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines

7 |V3 1/30/01 | South Lake Phoenix, AZ $260 check

Tahoe, CA 2nd Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines

8|V |3M201 | g ape | Phocnix, AZ $260 check

Tahoe, CA 2nd Level, Marcole Place,
- Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines

9 |V3 3/23/01 | South Lake Phoenix, AZ $260 check

Tahoe, CA 2nd Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.

Vincent and the Grenadines
10 { V-3 4/23/01 | South Lake Phoenix, AZ $260 check
Tahoe,CA | 2nd Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines.
11 (V4 11/09/00 | El Dorado Tai'get, San Diego, CA $750 check
Hills, CA 2nd Level, Marcole Place,
. Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines.
12 (v4 [1215/00 |BIDorado | TovB®h San Diego, CA $358 check
Hills, CA 2nd Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines.
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13 | V4 3/5/01 ElDorado . | Phoenix, AZ $330.67 check
Hills, CA 2nd Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines.
14 1 V4 4/2/01 El Dorado Phoenix, AZ $330 check

Hills, CA 2nd Level, Marcole Place,
; Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.

Vincent and the Grenadines.
15 | V-4 .| 5/15/01 | ElDorado Phoenix, AZ $330.66 check
Hills, CA 2nd Level, Marcole Place,
Halifax Street, Kingstown, St.
Vincent and the Grenadines.
H.  MONEY TRAIL OF PREMIUM PAYMENTS

72, Based upon my training end experience in financial fraud investigations, and
through the review of financial documents and other investigation by me, and other special
agents, I have identified the path of some of the money paid to TCE, as follows:

(a) Phoenix, Arizona:

As stated above, pursuant to directives by TCE, Brown, Thompson, or others,
customers buying into the TCE program, including those in the EDCA, were instructed to send
their premium payments to a TCE mail drop located at 536 E. Dunlap Avenue, Suite 9, box no.
470, which was a mail service operated by F & F Mailboxes & Emporium. TCE also instructed
some customers to send their checks to 2 second mail drop at 822 E. Union Hills, Suite 2, box

. 1o, 138 in Phoenix, Arizona, operated by Post Haste Mail & Ship. 1n some instances, customers
sent their checks to the broker who marketed the TCE program to them, such as Target, and the
funds were forwarded to TCE in SVG by the broker, From these mail drops, the customer
checks were sent via U.S. Mail or private or interstate common carrier to SVG.

(b) Blaine, Washington:

On or about July 1, 1996, Brown opened the TCE US Bank Account referenced
above at U.S. Bank in Blaine, Washington, account no. 1 535 0332 2247, According to bank
employees interviewed during this investigation, ] know that from approximately April 1999,
through approximately May 2004, TCE sent weekly parcels via Federal Express or DHL to US
Bank from SVG. These parcels contained checks and money orders stamped "For Deposit Only,
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Tri-Continental Exchange, account No. 1 535 0332 2247." Based on instructions from TCE,
Brown, and others, these checks were deposited into the TCE US Bank Account.

73.  Based on my review of TCE deposits and bank records, and my familiarity with
TCE operations, I have determined that from approximately 1998 through May 2004, more than
$23.9 million in insurance premiums were deposited into the TCE US Bank Account. Of this
money, ] am informed and believe that approximately $19 million was obtained a result of the
sales of policies which TCE falsely represented were backed by a legitimate insurance pool. [
have also determined that from these deposits, more than $10 million were transferred offshore
via bank wires to accounts controlled by Brown and his associates, with the remainder being
withdrawn by check or cash withdrawal,

74.  According to bahk records, | have identified the following money trapsfers from
the TCE US Bank Account to foreign bank acconnts maintained by Brown, and others:

(8)  Holetown, Barbados:

Based on financial records, I have determined that from the proceeds deposited into the
TCE US Bank Account, approximately $975,000 was transferred via wire to account no,
12-1011433 in the name of Robest L, Brown at Barclay's Bank PLC in Holetown, Barbados,
between August of 2000 and February 2003.

(b) St Helier, States of Jersey:

Based on my investigation, from June 2001 to August 2002, $5,050,000 in premium
proceeds were transferred from the TCE US Bank Account to via wire to an account at the Royal
Bank of Canada Limited in St. Helier, States of Jersey. The account no. 7981889, in the name
of Robert L. Brown and Shirley Darlene Whiteker. According to records received pursuant to a
Mutual Legal Assistance Treaty (*MLAT") request to States of Jersey, Brown and Whitaker
opened this account on or about August 5, 2001, using their frandulently obtained passposts as
identification. These wires to this account included:

DATE AMOUNT
June 11,2001 ~ §700,000
November 26, 2001 $600,000
December 20, 2001 © $700,000
January 15, 2002 $600,000
February 15, 2002 , $600,000
March 22, 2002 ' $750,000
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{ April 22, 2002 $500,000
May 3, 2002 $200,000
August 20, 2002 $400,000

TOTAL $5,050,000

In or about 2003, suspecting fraud, Royal Bank of Canada requested Brown close his
bank account, citing concerns about possible money laundering and fraud, In particular, while in
the process of opening a new bank account for Brown in the.name American Transport lnsurance

- Corporation, bank officials discovered that numerous cease and desist orders had been issued
against Brown relating to the unlawful sale of insurance. On August 14, 2003, Brown wired
$2,306,803.44 to an account in the name of John Hollis, at the First California Bank, in
Camerillo, California. John Hollis holds himself out as commsel for TCE, CSL, and others. On
or about Angust 18, 2003, Brown had the $2.5 million in this account wired to Allied Irish Bank
account, No 01614092 in Ireland, to an account i the name of TCE set forth below.

(©) Kﬂn_m,_i-

Of the premium proceeds contained in the TCE US Bank Account, more than $1.36
million was transferred via wire to account no. 015750985 at the Allied Irish Bank (AIB) to an
account in the name of Crest Lake Propertics LTD, between July 2001 and March 2003,
According to testimony by an AIB bank official, obtained pursuant to MLAT, the account was
opened by directors Robert L. Brown and Shirley Whitaker on June 24, 2001, at the Kenmare,

" Ireland branch. Robert L, Brown and Shirley Whiteker also opened account no. 01614092 at the
Kenmare, Ireland, AIB branch for TCE as directors in July 2003, utilizing their false passports.

According to the bank official and the documentation provided by AIB, Brown wired
$2.5 million from the account at the Royal Bank of Canada in the States of Jersey as identified
above to this new TCE AIB account, on August 18,2003, Upon receipt and conversion of the
funds to 2.218 million Euros, Brown placed the funds into various term deposits. Brown
immediately placed 1 million Euros each into a 3-month (account no. 0164258) and a 6-month
(eccount no. 01614175) term deposit. The remaining amount, approximately 218,000 Euros,
were then transferred to the Crest Lake Propesties, account at AIB as identified above.

(d) Kingstown, St. Vincent: -

Based on financial records I have reviewed, I know that from August 2000 through April
2004, approximately $2 miilion was transferred from the TCE US Bank Account via wire to
account number 8642 at National Commerce Bank Ltd in Kingstown, St. Vincent, in the name of
“Alternative Market Exchange Ltd.” Based on information obtained during this investigation, I
am informed and believe that Alternative Market Exchange Ltd is an entity used to administer
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payroll for TCE employees in SVG. I am further informed that Aiternative Market Exchange Ltd
held title to property purchased by Brown with "barter dollars” in Arkansas and Florida. The
contact for Alternative Marketing Exchange, Ltd. on the real estats documents was Brown, 2™
Marcole Plaza, Halifax Street, Kingstown, St. Vincent and the Grenedines.

() Gibraltar

As stated above, on or about August 14, 2003, Brown sent via wire transfer
$2,306,803.44 from his account af Royal Bank of Canada in the States of Jersey, to an account
held by John Hollis, at First California Bank, On or about September 24, 2004, Hollis
transferred $1,800,000 via wire transfer to an account held by Hook Enterprises Ltd, c/o
Redmont Trust Company at Jyske Bank, Gibraltar. Hook Enterprises is an entity unknown to the
government,

(f)  Grand Cayman Island. Cavman Islands, BVE .

Of the proceeds contained in the TCE US Bank Account, nearly $475,000 were
transferred via wire in less than a 12 month period between December of 2000 and November of
2001 to account no. 688374 at CIBC Bank and Trust Company LTD on the Grand Cayman
Island for the account in the name of Anthony Da Silva, a person unknown to the government,

(2 .N.Ass_&ﬁémz

Of the proceeds contained in the TCE US Bank Account, approximately $345,000 was
trensferred via wire to account no. 1266408 at Barclay's Bank in Nassaun, Bahamas, for the
account in the name of Commercial General Capital Investment LTD.

.  MONEY LAUNDERING

75. Iam aware that the money laundering statute prohibits the transportation,
transmission, or transfer of a monetary instrument or fumds from a place in the United States to or
through a place outside the United States, and from a place outside the United States to a place
inside the United States; (A) with the intent to promote the carrying on of specified unlawful
activity; or (B) knowing that the monetary instrument or funds involved in the transportation,
transmission, or transfer represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity and
knowing that such transportation, transmission, or transfer was designed in whole or in part
(i) to conceal or disguise the nature, the location, the source, the ownership, orthe control of the
proceeds of the specified unlawful activity. 18 U.S.C. §§ 1956 (aX2)(A) and (B)(i). I am also
aware that it is a crime to conspire to commit money laundering offenses. 18 U.S.C. § 1956 (h).

. Further, I know that real or personal property involved in, or traceable to, money laundering
offenses is subject to criminal forfeiture, 18 U.S.C. § 982. Here, based on my investigation, I
have determined that the evidence shows that defendants have engaged in prohibited acts of
money laundering. '
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76. I'have determined that the evidence shows that the defendant Brown, and these
working with him transported, transmitted, or transferred premium checks, and caused and aided
and abetted the same, from the United States to SVG through Phoenix, Arizona, and routing the
funds to TCE's bank account in Blaine, Washington. According to documents and witness
testimony, TCE clients were instructed to send their payments to TCE in Phoenix, Arizona,
which unbeknownst to them were mail drops. The checks were then transported to SVG, on or

about the dates set forth herein, as follows:

Victim Date Check Number
V-1 ' 2/26/01 " 6656
V-1 821102 9968
V-1 10/24/02 10246
V-1 12/9/02 10400
\ 1/30/0% 11381
V-3 1/30/01 1775
V-3 .. 3nam - 1792
V-3 3123/01 1802
V-3 423/01 1822
V-4 11/9/00 2081
V-4 12/15/00 . 1344
V4 3/5/01 1376
V-4 4/2/01 1392
V-4 5/15/01 1410

71.  Based on my training, I am familiar with the methods and practices used by
individuals and organizations involved in jllicit activities which generate large amounts of
income. ]am also familiar with the methods used to promote the carrying on of specified
unlawful activity and to conceal and disguise the proceeds of the fraud, Based on my training
and experience, I know that using premium payments to make payroll and other office payments
constitutes “promotion” of the mail fraud scheme, Here, I have identified more than 50
payments made via wire transmission from TCE's US Bank Account to pay employeeshired to
help operate the TCE and CSL programs in SVG.

. 78. My investigation has also shown that Brown, and others working with him, have
attempted to conceal and disguise their activities by sending customer funds through convoluted
and circuitous routes using mail drops and off-shore addresses, In this investigation, I bave
determined that Brown, and other uncharged co-conspirators moved premium money through
domestic mail drops, in locations where neither TCE nor CSL had operations of any kind,
Brown, and others, had thé checks transferred from the domestic mail drop off-shore to SVG,
thereby concealing the fact that the checks were being sent out of the country. Once received in
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SVG, the checks were generically stamped "For Deposit Only, Tri-Continental Exchange,
account No, 1 535 0332 2247." However, the checks were not negotiated in SVG. Rather,
Brown and others re-routed the checks to a bank account in Blaine, Washington. Neither TCE
nor CSL had operations in Blaine, Washington, and Brown did not work or reside there, In -
addition, by providing customers with virtually no information sbout the entity providing the
purported insurance, such as a physical address, and drafting the policies in a highly deceptive
manner; Brown and those working with him were further able to conceal and disguise the nature,
source, ownership, and control of the proceeds. Finally, Brown’s use of a false identity is further
evidence of efforts taken to conceal and disguise. From Blaine, Washington, nearly $10 million
of premium money was wired off-shore to accounts controlied by Brown, and others, including
accounts in Ireland, States of Jersey, and elsewhere, which funds were used for personal
expenses, with additional funds being used to pay overhead, expenses, and some claims.

J ON ONS

79.  Based upon my training and experience in fraudulent schemes, probable cause
. exists to believe that Brown, and others working with him, have been carrying out an insurance
fraud scheme by using deceptive practices and making materially false misleading
representations about the nature of the insurance sold. These deceptive practices and false
representations have caused victims in the EDCA, and elsewhere, to forward funds via the U.S,
mail to TCE, which were transferred abroad into bank accounts held by Robert Brown, others
working with him, and entities under his control, which were used for personal benefit.

80.  Based upon the facts set forth in this Affidavit, and my experience investigating
financial crimes, ! believe there is probable cause to believe that the individual using the identity
of the deceased Robert Lewis Brown has committed, and is continuing to commit, violations of
Mail Frand, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1341; Making of False Statement, in violation of 18
U.S.C. § 1001; Conspiracy to Commit Mail Fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371; Money
Laundering, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1956(a)(2)(A) and (B){); Conspiracy to Commit Money
Laundering, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(h); and 18 U.S.C. § 2 - Aiding and Abetting.

81. The criminal investigation into the TCE and CSL scheme is continuing, and further
interviews and grand jury appearances arc contemplated, Disclosure of the contents of this
affidavit wonld seriously impede the investigation by disclosing details of the government's
investigation and evidence gathered in connection therewith, Targets and subjects of the
investigation would be able to leam the present extent of the government’s knowledge. Further,
disclosure could cause harm to those cooperating with the government, Accordingly, the affiant
requests that the Court issue an order sealing this complaint and affidavit wmtil further order of
this Court, with the exception that the complaint and affidavit may be shared with law
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L4 ¥ *
enforcement in this country, Ireland, Barbados, and those additional counties or agencies
assisting with the provisional arrest and the extradition of Brown.

Special Agent, Federal Bureau of Investigation

SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED TG ME )

ON_/o__AUGUST,2004. ° - b A. j:gf’(
HONORABLE DALE A. DROZD
U.S. Magistrate Judge

APPROVED AS TO FORM

'ROBIIN R TAYL% | '

Assistant U.S. Attomey
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April 22, 2002 $500,000 '
May 3, 2002 $200,000
August 20, 2002 $400,000

TOTAL §5,050,000

In or about 2003, suspecting fraud, Royal Bank of Canada requested Brown close his
bank account, citing concerns about possible money laundering and fraud, In particular, while in
the process of opening a new bank account for Brown in the name American Transport Insurance :
Corporation, bank officials discovered that numerous cease and desist orders had been issued :
against Brown relating to the unlawful sale of insurance. On August 14, 2003, Brown wired
$2,306,803.44 to an account in the name of John Hollis, at the First California Bank, in
.Camerillo, California. Johm Hollis holds himself out as counse! for TCE, CSL, and others. On
or about August 18, 2003, Brown had the $2.5 million in this account wired to Allied Irish Bank
accmmt, No. 01614092 in Ireland, to an account in the name of TCE set forth below.

(c) K.m%___

Of the premium proceeds contained in the TCE US Bank Account, more than $1.36
million was transferred via wire to account no. 015750985 at the Allied Irish Bank (AIB) to an
account in the name of Crest Lake Propertics LTD, between July 2001 and March 2003.
According to testimony by an AIB bank official, obtained pursuant to MLAT, the account was

. opened by directors Robert L. Brown and Shirley Whitaker on June 24, 2001, at the Kenmare,
* Ireland branch. Robert L. Brown and Shirley Whitaker also opened account no. 01614092 at the
Kenmare, Ireland, AIB branch for TCE as directors in July 2003, utilizing their false passports.

According to the bank official and the documentation provided by AIB, Brown wired
$2.5 million from the account at the Royal Bank of Canada in the States of Jersey as identified
above to this new TCE AIB account, on August 18, 2003. Upon receipt and conversion of the
funds to 2.218 million Euros, Brown placed the funds into various term deposits. Brown
immediately placed 1 million Evros each into a 3-month (account no. 0164258) and a 6-month
(account no. 01614175) term deposit. The remaining amount, approximately 218,000 Ewos,
were then transferred to the Crest Lake Properties, account at AIB as identified above.

'(d) Kingstown, St. Vincegt

Based on financial records [ have reviewed, I know that from August 2000 through April
2004, approximately $2 million was transferred from the TCE US Bank Account via wire to
account number 8642 at National Commerce Bank Ltd in Kingstown, St. Vincent, in the name of
“Alternative Market Exchange Ltd.” Based on information obtained during this investigation, I
am informed and believe that Alterative Market Exchange Ltd is an entity used to administer
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payroll for TCE employees in SVG. I am further informed that Alternative Market Exchange Ltd
held title to property purchased by Brown with "barter dollars" in Arkansas and Florida, The
contact for Altemative Marketing Exchange, Ltd. on the real estate documents was Brown, 2%
Marcole Plaza, Halifax Street, Kingstown, St. Vincent and the Grenedines.

(¢)  Gibraltar:

As stated above, on or about August 14, 2003, Brown sent via wire transfer
$2,306,803.44 from his account af Royal Bank of Canada in the States of Jersey, to an account
held by John Hollis, at First California Bank. On or about September 24, 2004, Hollis
transferred $1,800,000 via wire transfer to an account held by Hook Enterprises Ltd, c/o
Redmont Trust Company at Jyske Bank, Gibraltar. Hook Enterprises is an entity unknown to the
govemment, .

(0 Grand Cayman Island, Cayman Jslands, BVE e

Of the proceeds contained in the TCE US Bank Account, nearly $475,000 were
transferred via wire in less than a 12 month period between December of 2000 and Novembér of
2001 to account no. 688374 at CIBC Bank and Trust Company LTD on the Grand Cayman
Island for the account in the name of Anthony Da Silva, a person unknown to the government,

() Nassu, Bahamas:

Of the proceeds contained in the TCE US Bank Account, approximately $345,000 was
transferred via wire to account no. 1266408 at Barclay's Bank in Nassau, Bahamas, for the
account in the name of Commercial General Capital Investment LTD.

1.  MONEY LAUNDERING

75.  1am aware that the money laundering statute prohibits the transportation,
transmission, or transfer of a monetary instrument or funds from a place in the United States to or
through a place outside the United States, and from & place outside the United States to a place
inside the United States; (A) with the intent to promote the carrying on of specified unlawful
activity; or (B) knowing that the monetary instrument or funds involved in the transportation,
transmission, or transfer represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity and
‘knowing that such transportation, transmission, or transfer was designed in whole or in part
(i) to conceal or disguise the nature, the location, the source, the ownership, orthe control of the
proceeds of the specified unlawful activity. 18 U.S.C. §§ 1956 (a)(2)(A) and (B)(f). 1am also
aware that it is a crime to conspire to commit money laundering offenses. 18 U.S.C. § 1956 (h).
Further, I know that real or personal property involved in, or traceable to, money laundering
offenses is subject to criminal forfeiture, 18 U.S.C, § 982. Here, based on my investigation, I
have determined that the evidence shows that defendants have engaged in prohibited acts of
money laundering.
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76. 1have determined that the evidence shows that the defendant Brown, and those
working with him transported, transmitted, or transferred premium checks, and caused and aided
and abetted the same, from the United States to SVG through Phoenix, Arizona, and routing the
funds to TCE's bank account in Blaine, Washington. According to documents and witness
testimony, TCE clients were instructed to send their payments to TCE in Phoenix, Arizona,
which unbeknownst to them were mail drops. The checks were then transported to SVG, on or

about the dates set forth herein, as follows:

Victim Date Check Number
V-l 2/26/01 6656
V-1 8121/02 9968
V-1 10/24/02 10246
V-1 12/9/02 10400
V.2 1730/01 . 11381
V-3 1/30/01 1775
V-3 .oy s 1792
V-3 3/23/01 1802
V-3 4/23/01 1822
V4 11/9/00 2081
V4 12/15/00 L. 1344
V4 3/5/01 1376
V4 4/2/01 1392
V4 5/15/01 1410

77.  Based on my training, | am familiar with the methods and practices used by
individuals and organizations involved in illicit activities which penerate large amounts of
income. Iam also familiar with the methods used to promote the carrying on of specified
unlawful activity and to conceal and disguise the proceeds of the fraud. Based on my training .
and experience, | know that using premivm payments to make payroll and other office payments
constitutes “promotion” of the mail fraud scheme, Here, 1 have identified more than 50
payments made via wire transmission from TCE’s US Bank Account to pay employees hired to
help operate the TCE and CSL programs in SVG.

78. My investigation has also shown that Brown, and others working with him, have
attempted to conceal and disguise their activities by sending customer funds through convoluted
and circuitous routes using mail drops and off-shore addresses. In this investigation, I have
determined that Brown, and other uncharged co-conspirators moved premium money through
domestic mail drops, in locations where neither TCE nor CSL had operations of any kind.
Brown, and others, had th¢ checks transferred from the domestic mail drop off-shore to SVG,
thereby concealing the fact that the checks were being sent out of the country, Once received in
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SVG, the checks were generically stamped "For Deposit Only, Tri-Continental Exchange,
account No, 1 535 0332 2247." However, the.checks were not negotiated in SVG. Rather,
Brown and others re-routed the checks to a bank account in Blaine, Washington. Neither TCE
nor CSL had operations in Blaine, Washington, and Brown did not work or reside there, In .
addition, by providing customers with virtually no information about the entity providing the
purported insurance, such as a physical address, and drafting the policies in a highly deceptive
manner; Brown and those working with him were further able to conceal and disguise the nature,
source, ownership, and control of the proceeds, Finally, Brown's use of a false idemtity is further
- evidence of efforts taken to conceal and disgise. From Blaine, Washington, nearly $10 million
of premium money was wired off-shore to accounts controlled by Brown, and others, including
accounts in Ireland, States of Jersey, and elsewhere, which funds were used for personal
expenses, with additional funds being used to pay overhead, expenses, and some claims.

J NCLUSIONS

79.  Based upon my training and experience in fraudulent schemes, probable cause
exists to believe that Brown, and others working with him, have been carrying out an insurance
fraud scheme by using deceptive practices and making materially false misleading
representations about the nature of the jnsurance sold, These deceptive practices and false
representations have caused victims in the EDCA, and elsewhere, to forward fimds via the U.S.
mail to TCE, which were transferred abroad into bank accounts held by Robert Brown, others
working with him, and entities under his control, which were used for personal benefit.

80,  Based upon the facts set forth in this Affidavit, and my experience investigating
financial crimes, | believe there is probable cause to believe that the individual using the identity
of the deceased Robert Lewis Brown has committed, and is continuing to commit, violations of
Mail Fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1341; Making of False Statement, in viclation of 18
U.S.C. § 100}; Conspiracy to Commit Mail Fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371; Money
Laundering, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1956(2)(2XA) and (B)(i); Conspiracy to Commit Money
Laundering, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(h); end 18 U.S.C. § 2 - Aiding and Abetting,

81, The criminal investigation into the TCE and CSL scheme is continuing, and further
interviews and grand jury appearances are contemplated. Disclosure of the contents of this
affidavit would seriously impede the investigation by disclosing details of the government's
investigation and evidence gathered in connection therewith, Targets and subjects of the
investigation would be able to leam the present extent of the government’s knowledge, Further,
disclosure could cause harm to-those cooperating with the government. Accordingly, the affiant
requests that the Court issue an order sealing this complaint and affidavit until further order of
this Court, with the exception that the complaint and affidavit may be shared with law
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enforcement in this country, Ireland, Barbados, and those additional countries or agencies
assisting with the provisional arrest and the extradition of Brown.

kad

/ﬂ
*

JOHN #MP
Special Agent, Federal Bureau of Investigation
SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED TO ME )
ON /o AUGUST,204. - UG A. o
THONORABLE DALE A. DROZD
U.S. Magistrate Judge

APPROVED AS TO FORM

ROB‘INR.TAYL%R! . : :

Assistant U.S. Attomey
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